The Forty Keys of David



Laurika du Plessis

Shortened PDF Version



The Forty Keys of David - Laurika du Plessis

Copyright © 2023 by Laurika du Plessis, Namibia.

Published by Audience of One Media, Pty. (Ltd)

www.audienceofonemedia.co.za

publishing@audienceofonemedia.co.za

Registration 2018 / 579223 / 07

Unless otherwise indicated, Scriptures are taken from the King James Version (KJV), Public Domain, extracted from e-Sword.

e-Sword® version 10.1.0, Copyright© 2000 – 2012, Rick Meyers, All rights reserved worldwide, e-Sword® is given free to all, e-Sword® is a registered trademark of Rick Meyers.

All Strong's notes also from e-Sword from the KJV+ translation.

Scripture quotations marked (ESVUK) are taken from The Holy Bible, English Standard Version Anglicised. ESV® Text Edition: 2016. Copyright © 2001 by Crossway Bibles, a publishing ministry of Good News Publishers.

Scripture quotations marked (NIVUK) are taken from the Holy Bible, New International Version® Anglicized, NIV® Copyright © 1979, 1984, 2011 by Biblica, Inc.® Used by permission. All rights reserved worldwide.

Scripture quotations marked (NASB1995) taken from the (NASB®) New American Standard Bible®, Copyright © 1960, 1971, 1977, 1995 by The Lockman Foundation. Used by permission. All rights reserved. www.lockman.org.

Scripture quotations marked (NKJV) are taken from the New King James Version. Copyright © 1982 by Thomas Nelson, Inc. Used by permission. All rights reserved.

Scripture quotations marked (NLT) are taken from Holy Bible, New Living Translation, copyright © 1996, 2004, 2015 by Tyndale House Foundation. Used by permission of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc., Carol Stream, Illinois 60188. All rights reserved.

This is a free pdf copy and may be distributed by any means necessary, with the only request being that it is done for free and not sold, and also in its complete form and not fragmented, for any reader to experience the full context of the author's message to readers.

The opinions and views of the author are not necessarily those of the publisher. The publisher cannot be held liable for any information that could lead to defamation of any person or organisation and will not accept legal liability for any statement or claim made by the author in the manuscript.

Copy editing and layout: Elaine Broekman

Front page image by bearfotos on Freepik

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Key 1 – High Time to be Awake	3
Key 2 – Mirror	7
Key 3 – A Shaking	11
Key 4 – Groaning	14
Key 5 – A Circumcised Heart	17
Key 6 – The Time of the End	20
Key 7 – Restoration	24
Key 8 – Rest	28
Key 9 – The Way	32
Key 10 – A Standard	35
Key 11 – A Precious Pearl	38
Key 12 – Voices	42
Key 13 – See	45
Key 14 – Enter	48
Key 15 – Inherit	52
Key 16 – Identity	55
Key 17 – Jump	58
Key 18 – Oath	61
Key 19 – Firstborn Right	65
Key 20 – Twins	69
Key 21 – Barabbas	73
Key 22 – Sons of God	77
Key 23 – Heavenly Kingdom	81
Key 24 – Move	86
Kev 25 – Frequency	90

Key 26 – DNA	95
Key 27 – Side/Rib	101
Key 28 – In One Hour	105
Key 29 – Blueprint	109
Key 30 – Covenant	113
Key 31 – Judah	117
Key 32 – Full Measure	121
Key 33 – Mistaken Identity	125
Key 34 – A Riddle	131
Key 35 – Mimic	135
Key 36 – Seven Eyes	138
Key 37 – Mandate	144
Key 38 – Crossover	149
Key 39 – Testing	153
Key 40 – Inherit	157

Introduction

After the publishing of our book, *The Last Call*, where we wrote about the forty keys of David, we were prompted by the Holy Spirit to do a forty-day Bible study to assist His body in finding the important truths for themselves, as they would read the word and listen to the Holy Spirit themselves. It is, after all, the Holy Spirit who draws people to the Father, through His Son, to become His sons.

In this work, we therefore bring you the original forty keys that were broadcast via Radio Hartklop, the national Afrikaans radio station of Namibia, and Radio Kairos, a private radio station in the Rehoboth area, on the airways of Namibia, from 19 July 2021 until 14 September 2021.

You are invited to listen and read the original 40 Keys of David on Telegram, as well as join the Telegram Group, Namibia's Prophetic Hour. Just send your name and cell phone number via WhatsApp to 081 128 9188, Laurika du Plessis.

On those two groups you will get more personal information about our road to sonship in Namibia and how Father led us through various towns and through various earthquakes. *The Last Call* can also be ordered from <u>Audience of One Media</u>. It is also available in PDF format (a personalised, password-protected electronic copy).

Order at <u>www.audienceofonemedia.co.za/laurika-du-plessis</u>. We are also working on an audio book to which you can listen while driving on the road or at night-time.

We have already sent copies of *The Last Call* to various countries around the globe, and will continue to do so until the "127 countries of Esther", as a metaphor for the whole world, have been reached.

With *this* free PDF file, *The Forty Keys of David*, we wish to "reach every home for Father". We include Bible Scriptures for those who do not have a Bible, but encourage deep study of various translations for those who have Bibles or technology (try the YouVersion Bible app, <u>www.Biblegateway.com</u>, or download <u>e-Sword</u>) to ensure that these truths are dropped in your spirit and not kept from you because of mistranslations.

May these keys bless you to find your identity and position in Christ, to be born as His firstborn son, having firstborn rights, promised for you in His Testament.

Shine brightly and go in His power!

Laurika

Why the Keys of David?

Firstly, the word states that there comes a time for the restoration of the Tabernacle of David, which represents us (Amos 9:11; Acts 15:16).

Acts 3:21 also states that it is the restoration of all things (Key 7).

Secondly, the word speaks about the key of David and that we have received the keys of the Kingdom of Heaven (Revelation 3:7; Isaiah 22:22; Matthew 16:19).

Therefore, this book with its keys will help you to get to the place where you realise that YOU are that Tabernacle (Dwelling place of God) and how you can use these keys to be enlightened to what God wants to do in this specific period of time.

How to use this book?

Each key is listed and discussed in seven steps.

- 1. Look at the "Meaning of concepts" and search on your own for further meaning and revelation by using a dictionary, as well as topical Bibles, such as e-Sword.
 - Warning: Remember, Google uses algorithms that can force you in a specific direction. Always be led by the Holy Spirit and be awake to the counterfeit. Pray before you start and dedicate your studies to our Father and ask for the leading of the Holy Spirit and be covered by the blood of Yahshua (Jesus, the Christ).
- 2. In the "Look out for" part we try to guide you in the direction this book will take you.
- 3. The "Remember" part helps you to put an idea in your mind and on your heart.
- 4. The "Are you ready?" part ensures that you are ready for the lesson/key to be learned.
- 5. The "Key Lesson" to be learned or summary of the key is given to ensure you capture the main theme of the key.
- 6. Important "Scriptures" are given for your benefit, but you are invited to search for more on the topic.

7. "Notes." Make your own notes as the Holy Spirit leads you to confirm the key in your heart.

Key 1 - High Time to be Awake

"Awake to God's righteousness"

Meaning of Concepts

Awake: Opening of the eyes, raising up, starting up from sleep, death, stupidity, or inaction, to put into action.

Righteousness: To be made right, cleansed, free; to be cleared of your verdict, to be right with God, restoration of a criminal, to be acquitted.

Look out for

It is your prophetic hour to awake from your sleep and sin and inaction and awake unto God's righteousness and be in right standing with Him. It is time to take His hand and walk with Him.

Remember

This is the moment for the dead to hear the voice of the Son.

Hear and live.

Are you ready?

To receive the reward of a righteous person, just as they who receive a prophet receive a prophet's reward?

To receive God's righteousness? Then you will be set free from being judged and receive a righteous reward and shine with His glory!

Key Lesson

"Wokeness" in today's world means to be awake to a worldly social injustice. From a Biblical perspective, we should be awake to the *truth* of the word of the Father and His righteousness, to be able to shine brightly in a dark world. Are you awake to the world and its systems or to God and His truths and His judgement in His court of law? In His court you will receive a not-guilty verdict.

Key 1 awakes us to the righteousness and image of God in us, and not what the woke agenda wants to teach about who we are as an individual or a family, as God's image is portrayed in the family unit.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures in various translations and search for all the verses about being awake and about God's righteousness. Here are some of them:

1 Corinthians 15:34 Awake to righteousness, and sin not; for some have not the knowledge of God:

Isaiah 52:1 Awake, awake; put on thy strength, O Zion; put on thy beautiful garments...

John 5:25 Oh how I desire for you to get this. The prophetic hour has come. This is the moment for the dead to hear the voice of the Son of God. Hear and live. (Mirror Bible App)

Romans 13:11 And that, knowing the time, that now it is high time to awake out of sleep: for now is our salvation nearer than when we believed.

Psalm 17:15 As for me, I will behold thy face in righteousness: I shall be satisfied, when I awake, with thy likeness.

Amos 3:7 Surely the Lord GOD does nothing, unless He reveals His secret to His servants the prophets.

Matthew 10:41 (ESVUK) The one who receives a prophet because he is a prophet will receive a prophet's reward, and the one who receives a righteous person because he is a righteous person will receive a righteous person's reward.

Ephesians 5:14 Wherefore he saith, awake thou that sleepest, and arise from the dead, and Christ shall give thee light.

Luke 9:32 But Peter and they that were with him were heavy with sleep: and when they were awake, they saw his glory, and the two men that stood with him.

Judges 5:12a Awake, awake, Deborah: awake, awake...

Notes

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

Key 2 - Mirror

"Reflecting His Image"

Meaning of Concepts

Mirror: A surface capable of reflecting sufficient light to form an image of an object placed in front of it.

A mirror faithfully reflects or gives a true picture of something else.

Something worthy of imitation.

Look out for

Seeing the face of Christ when you look in the mirror.

Remember

The unseen is temporary and eternal, and the seen will vanish.

Are you ready?

To see Christ face to face?

To know Him fully?

To imitate Christ?

To reflect Christ?

To be transformed into His image?

Key Lesson

We have learnt that Father is a judge that He is judging us for sins, however, Father has sent His Son to pay the penalty for our sins and to restore us back into His image that we have lost. How do you see yourself when you look in the mirror? Do you see Christ, or do you see the image that the world and you have formed of yourself? On this road of the 40 keys, the image of Christ will be re-established in you.

Key 2 shows us how to see *Christ* when we look into the mirror and not to see the image which the world is portraying of us.

Scriptures

Read the scriptures and search for all the verses about being created in God's image, mirror, reflecting His glory, and being an imitator of Christ, and to see Him face to face.

1 Corinthians 2:9-10 But as it is written, Eye hath not seen, nor ear heard, neither have entered into the heart of man, the things which God hath prepared for them that love him. But God hath revealed them unto us by his Spirit: for the Spirit searcheth all things, yea, the deep things of God.

Colossians 1:27 To whom God would make known what is the riches of the glory of this mystery among the Gentiles; which is Christ in you, the hope of glory:

2 Corinthians 4:18 While we look not at the things which are seen, but at the things which are not seen: for the things which are seen are temporal; but the things which are not seen are eternal.

1 Corinthians 13:12 (ESVUK) For now we see in a mirror dimly, but then face to face; now I know in part, but then I will know fully just as I also have been fully known.

2 Corinthians 3:18 (NASB1995) But we all, with unveiled face, beholding as in a mirror the glory of the Lord, are being transformed into the same image from glory to glory, just as from the Lord, the Spirit.

James 1:23 (ESVUK) For if anyone is a hearer of the word and not a doer, he is like a man who looks intently at his natural face in a mirror.

Ephesians 5:1 (ESVUK) Therefore be imitators of God, as beloved children.

Jeremiah 29:11 (NIVUK) For I know l the plans I have for you, declares the LORD, "plans to prosper you and not to harm you, plans to give you hope and a future.

Notes

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 3 - A Shaking

"The shaking of all things shakeable"

Meaning of Concepts

Shaking: To strike with violence and to be moved rapidly the one way or another, like an earthquake.

Unshakeable: Not possible to weaken or get rid of, not able to be shaken due to a firm foundation and being tested.

Look out

Some shakings are from God Himself, opening new water wells and foundations (new revelations).

We also play a part in the shaking, with our prayers, shaking the earth from heaven.

Remember

We must know He is shaking everything that can be shaken, for the unshakable to remain.

Babylon will fall in the shaking and His Heavenly Kingdom will be established and will stand for ever.

Are you ready?

To be shaken for the immovable to remain?

Key Lesson

As we are seeing darkness seemingly taking over the world, we should realise and know that it is God who is shaking the world and its systems to reveal to us the evil of the worldly systems. In this the light and God's truth will be revealed and will stay standing, an unshakeable Heavenly Kingdom that will last for ever. Do not be afraid of the revealing of darkness. Shine brightly, as darkness has to go if light appears.

Key 3 shows us how God is currently shaking the Babylonian system, for His everlasting Kingdom to be established.

Scriptures

Read the scriptures and search for all the verses about being shaken, strong foundations, and being tested.

Hebrews 12:27-28 And this word, Yet once more, signifieth the removing of those things that are shaken, as of things that are made, that those things which cannot be shaken may remain. ²⁸Wherefore we receiving a kingdom which cannot be moved, let us have grace, whereby we may serve God acceptably with reverence and godly fear:

Psalm 18:6-7 In my distress I called upon the Lord, and cried unto my God: he heard my voice out of his temple, and my cry came before him, even into his ears. ⁷ Then the earth shook and trembled; the foundations also of the hills moved and were shaken, because he was wroth.

Revelation 8:4-5 And the smoke of the incense, which came with the prayers of the saints, ascended up before God out of the angel's hand. ⁵And the angel took the censer, and filled it with fire of the altar, and cast

it into the earth: and there were voices, and thunderings, and lightnings, and an earthquake.

Jeremiah 51:8 Babylon is suddenly fallen and destroyed: howl for her; take balm for her pain, if so, be she may be healed.

Revelation 14:8 And there followed another angel, saying, Babylon is fallen, is fallen, that great city, because she made all nations drink of the wine of the wrath of her fornication.

Daniel 2:44 And in the days of these kings shall the God of heaven set up a kingdom, which shall never be destroyed: and the kingdom shall not be left to other people, but it shall break in pieces and consume all these kingdoms, and it shall stand for ever.

Notes		

Key 4 - Groaning

"Groaning for the manifestation of the sons of God"

Meaning of concepts

Groaning: In Greek, the word can be traced back to a word meaning to give birth. It is the same process that was described when the Spirit of God *moved* upon the face of the waters.

The Hebrew word for *moved* means brooded or hovered, as when a mother bird broods over her eggs to bring forth life.

Look out

For the revelation of the *birth* of the firstborn sons.

Remember

We must know that this is the hour of the manifestation of the sons of God, and the earth is groaning in birthing pains for us to come forth.

Are you ready?

There is *agony* during the birthing pains.

You or a nation can be birthed in one day.

We as sons are being born as a symbol of the sign of the Son of Man.

Key Lesson

The earth is groaning for the manifestation of the sons of God. During the groaning of the birthing process, pain might want to overcome you. Christ was the Firstborn from the Father to provide us the firstborn right as sons of the Father. Earth is calling us to come forth, like Lazarus was called out of the grave.

Key 4 shows us that current world events are the groaning of the earth for the sons of God to be revealed.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for all the verses about birth pains and birthing.

Romans 8:19, 22 For the earnest expectation of the creature waiteth for the manifestation of the sons of God. ²²For we know that the whole creation groaneth and travaileth in pain together until now.

Hosea 13:13 (ESVUK) The pangs of childbirth come for him, but he is an unwise son, for at the right time he does not present himself at the opening of the womb.

Jeremiah 4:31 (ESVUK) For I heard a cry as of a woman in labor, anguish as of one giving birth to her first child, the cry of the daughter of Zion gasping for breath, stretching out her hands, "Woe is me! I am fainting before murderers.

Revelation 12:1-2 (ESVUK) And a great sign appeared in heaven: a woman clothed with the sun, with the moon under her feet, and on her head a crown of twelve stars. She was pregnant and was crying out in birth pains and the agony of giving birth.

Isaiah 66:7-8 (ESVUK) Before she was in labour she gave birth; before her pain came upon her she delivered a son. Who has heard such a thing? Who has seen such things? Shall a land be born in one day? Shall a nation be brought forth in one moment? For as soon as Zion was in labour she brought forth her children.

Matthew 24:30 And then shall appear the sign of the Son of man in heaven: and then shall all the tribes of the earth mourn, and they shall see the Son of man coming in the clouds of heaven with power and great glory.

Matthew 24:27 (ESVUK) For as the lightning comes from the east and shines as far as the west, so will be the coming of the Son of Man.

Notes	

Key 5 - A Circumcised Heart

"A heart like David's"

Meaning of concepts

Circumcision: Circumcision (to cut away a piece of flesh) of the boys on the eighth day was a sign of the covenant with God the Father.

Heart: The centre of your being. Where your heart is, there your treasure will also be.

Look out

To receive a new circumcised heart.

Remember

It is only in the eighth day that a baby has enough vitamin K2 to enable the blood of the baby to clot, and not to bleed to death. Father knows the perfect day for the circumcision of your heart. They whose hearts are circumcised are true Hebrews. Medical personnel referred to the dangerous eighth day in the Covid-19 cycle in 2021. This eighth-day season is to get our hearts away from earthly treasures, as the heart is the centre of our being.

Are you ready?

For your heart to be circumcised?

Key Lesson

Already in the Old Testament, God was referring to the circumcision of the *heart*. David was a man after God's heart, because his heart was circumcised, and he repented easily. We should not harden our hearts in this season where Father is talking to us through His Firstborn Son.

Key 5 shows us that a David's heart is a heart cut by the love of God, which will cause you to love God and your neighbour as yourself.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for verses about your heart, circumcision of the heart, and a pure heart, as well as verses about David's writings, words, and ways.

Hebrews 3:15 (NIVUK) As has just been said: 'Today, if you hear his voice, do not harden your hearts as you did in the rebellion.'

Romans 2:29 But he is a Jew, which is one inwardly; and circumcision is that of the heart, in the spirit, and not in the letter; whose praise is not of men, but of God.

Psalm 51:10 Create in me a clean heart, O God; and renew a right spirit within me.

Matthew 5:8 Blessed are the pure in heart: for they shall see God.

Matthew 6:21 For where your treasure is, there will your heart be also.

Deuteronomy 30:6 And the Lord thy God will circumcise thine heart, and the heart of thy seed, to love the Lord thy God with all thine heart, and with all thy soul, that thou mayest live.

Genesis 17:12 And he that is eight days old shall be circumcised among you, every man child in your generations, he that is born in the house, or bought with money of any stranger, which is not of thy seed.

Romans 4:11 And he received the sign of circumcision, a seal of the righteousness of the faith which he had yet being uncircumcised: that he might be the father of all them that believe, though they be not circumcised; that righteousness might be imputed unto them also:

Notes	

Key 6 - The Time of the End

"A Kingdom with no end"

Meaning of concepts

Abomination in Hebrew is from the root word meaning to pollute.

Desolation from the root word meaning uninhabitable or to grow numb.

Look out

Jesus was speaking some 200 years after the abomination of desolation had already occurred, after a pig was offered in the Jewish Temple.

Wouldn't you agree that Jesus must have been prophesying that sometime in the future *another* abomination of desolation would occur?

We know that our bodies are now the temple.

We are now the living sacrifice to be offered.

Therefore, will our bodies be uninhabitable by the Spirit in these days when we make a covenant with death?

How will our bodies become uninhabitable?

Remember

Daniel was told to shut the books UNTIL the time of the end.

Thank the Father, the Stone will break this beastly kingdom in pieces.

He said that knowledge would increase, and we had a knowledge explosion. From ox wagons and postal doves to space travel and emails.

Are you ready?

For the time of the throne of David of a Kingdom with no end that will be established in the time of these kingdoms?

Key Lesson

Just remember not to let your seed be mingled with computers and artificial intelligence, and do not have a covenant with death. It is in this time that the Kingdom of Heaven, an everlasting kingdom which will endure for ever, will be established.

Key 6 shows us how Satan will try to mingle the seed of men, (clay) with iron (artificial intelligence or machines/technology), which will be the abomination in the temple, that is us, at the time of the end.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for all the verses about iron and clay and the time of the end, and the rock.

Mark 13:14 But when ye shall see the abomination of desolation, spoken of by Daniel the prophet, standing where it ought not, (let him that readeth understand,) then let them that be in Judaea flee to the mountains:

Daniel 7:23 Thus he said, The fourth beast shall be the fourth kingdom upon earth, which shall be diverse from all kingdoms, and shall devour the whole earth, and shall tread it down, and break it in pieces.

Daniel 2:34 Thou sawest till that a stone was cut out without hands, which smote the image upon his feet that were of iron and clay, and brake them to pieces."

Daniel 2:40 And the fourth kingdom shall be strong as iron: forasmuch as iron breaketh in pieces and subdueth all things: and as iron that breaketh all these, shall it break in pieces and bruise.

Daniel 2:43 And whereas thou sawest iron mixed with miry clay, they shall mingle themselves with the seed of men: but they shall not cleave one to another, even as iron is not mixed with clay.

Daniel 2:44 (NASB1995) In the days of those kings the God of heaven will set up a kingdom which will never be destroyed, and that kingdom will not be left for another people; it will crush and put an end to all these kingdoms, but it will itself endure forever.

Revelation 3:10 Because thou hast kept the word of my patience, I also will keep thee from the hour of temptation (testing/examining), which shall come upon all the world, to try (testing/examine) them that dwell upon the earth.

Notes

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

Key 7 - Restoration

"Restoration of all things"

Meaning of concepts

Restoration means to make something better than it was.

The Biblical meaning of the word "restoration" is to receive back *more* than has been lost, to the point where the final state is greater than the original condition. Unlike the regular dictionary meaning of "restoration" which is to return something back to its original form.

The main point is that someone or something is *improved* beyond measure. (More about measure later.)

Look out

Father is restoring the Tabernacle of David, that is us, as temple not made of hands, His sons, back to the original blueprint in Heaven.

Remember

In the book of Acts, we read that Heaven had to receive Christ until the restoring of all things.

Are you ready?

The area of darkness caused by light being blocked by something (a shadow) will be restored to the original light *without* the darkness.

Key Lesson

Restore what? The first Tabernacle? Moses was told to make the Tabernacle according to the pattern or blueprint in Heaven. A Tabernacle in Heaven long before the physical "shadow" one on earth? A pattern is a form or model proposed for imitation. A blueprint is a detailed plan of action. "Shadow" is an area of darkness, caused by light being blocked by something. We only had a shadow of a Tabernacle on earth.

Key 7 shows us how God is restoring the tabernacle of David, that represents us, being the temple of God.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for restoration, shadow, and paying back seven-fold.

Hebrews 8:5 (NIVUK) They serve at a sanctuary that is a copy and shadow of what is in heaven. This is why Moses was warned when he was about to build the tabernacle: 'See to it that you make everything according to the pattern shown you on the mountain.'

Acts 3:21 Whom the heaven must receive until the times of restitution of all things, which God hath spoken by the mouth of all his holy prophets since the world began.

Acts 15:16 After this I will return, and will build again the tabernacle of David, which is fallen down; and I will build again the ruins thereof, and I will set it up:

Amos 9:11 (NASB1995) In that day I will raise up the fallen booth of David, And wall up its breaches; I will also raise up its ruins And rebuild it as in the days of old;

Matthew 17:11 And Jesus answered and said unto them, Elias truly shall first come, and restore all things.

Malachi 4:2 (NKJV) But to you who fear My name The Sun of Righteousness shall arise with healing (restoration) in His wings and you shall go out and grow fat like stall-fed calves.

1 Peter 5:10 (ESVUK) And after you have suffered for a little while, the God of all grace, who has called you to his eternal glory in Christ, will himself restore, confirm, strengthen, and establish you.

Job 42:10 (ESVUK) And the Lord restored the fortunes of Job, when he had prayed for his friends. And the Lord gave Job twice as much as he had before.

Notes

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 8 - Rest

"Rest in the Father and His works on the seventh day"

Meaning of concepts

Seven is the Hebrew word *sheba*, deriving from the Hebrew word *Shaba*, meaning to complete, cease from works, celebrate. Not to lack anything and to be taken away.

Remember

The third and seventh day are the same time, symbolically. Just as Abba Father has rested from His works on the seventh day, so has Christ said, "It is finished", for us to rest on the third day (2,000 years after His resurrection), which is also the seventh day (6,000 years have passed since the history of the Bible began). For God, a day is like a thousand years and thousand years as a day.

The seventh day and the third day are connected in Numbers 19 in the laws of purification, where one would have been cleansed from death on the seventh day if he was purified by the ash of the red heifer on the third day. We are purified from death!

Look out

Now is the time for REST! The time is here for the new order to be manifested as the scrolls were sealed until the right time.

Are you ready?

For a riddle on the third day?

Entrance to the inner court on the third day?

A wedding on the third day?

Walls coming down on the seventh day?

Key Lesson

Therefore, we can *rest* in our Father's works through His Son! It is the fullness of time where the seals are broken and we start to receive revelations in a whole different way, the revelation of Jesus, the Light in us, and the revelation of darkness. No more grey areas. It is the time of light against darkness.

Key 8 shows us how to get complete rest in the total works of Christ and how we become the Sabbath for the world.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for rest, third day, and seventh day.

Hebrews 4:10 (NIVUK) for anyone who enters God's rest also rests from their works, just as God did from his.

Genesis 2:2 (NASB1995) By the seventh day God completed His work which He had done, and He rested on the seventh day from all His work which He had done.

Exodus 31:17 (NASB1995) It is a sign between Me and the sons of Israel forever; for in six days the Lord made heaven and earth, but on the seventh day He ceased from labor, and was refreshed."

Joshua 6:15 (NASB1995) Then on the seventh day they rose early at the dawning of the day and marched around the city in the same manner seven times; only on that day they marched around the city seven times.

Judges 14:18 (NASB1995) So the men of the city said to him on the seventh day before the sun went down, "What is sweeter than honey and what is stronger than a lion?" And he said to them, "If you had not plowed with my heifer, You would not have found out my riddle."

2 Peter 3:8 But, beloved, be not ignorant of this one thing, that one day is with the Lord as a thousand years, and a thousand years as one day.

Hosea 6:2 After two days will he revive us: in the third day he will raise us up and we will live in his sight.

Luke 13:32 (NASB1995) And He said to them, "Go and tell that fox, 'Behold, I cast out demons and perform cures today and tomorrow, and the third day I reach My goal.

Numbers 19:12 He shall purify himself with it on the third day, and on the seventh day he shall be clean: but if he purify not himself the third day, then the seventh day he shall not be clean.

Notes	

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 9 - The Way

"The Way of Righteousness is Life"

Meaning of concepts

Adam and Eve lost the way to the tree of life and saw death.

We are challenged to walk in the ways of God to get *back* to the tree of life. Enoch walked with God on His way and did not see death.

Look out

Ask where the good way is. Prepare the way of the Lord.

Remember

Remember that Jesus is the Way, the Truth, and the Life. He is the Way to the Father. Every move of Father causes shakings to test our belief in His ways. The religious spirits are not happy with the ways and new moves of God.

Are you ready?

To be called "a sect", just as the disciples were because they followed *The Way*? Are you ready for the way to the tree of life?

Key Lesson

The way to the righteousness of the Father is through Christ. Christ is the Way to the Life, which is the Father. We can only get to the Father through His Son. It is a way of truth to life everlasting.

Key 9 shows us that Christ is the way to the Father, who *is* everlasting life.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for scriptures about the way and how to walk in it, the broad way, and the narrow way.

Proverbs 12:28 (ESVUK) In the path of righteousness is life, and in its pathway, there is no death.

Jeremiah 6:16 (NIVUK) This is what the Lord says: 'Stand at the crossroads and look; ask for the ancient paths, ask where the good way is, and walk in it, and you will find rest for your souls. But you said, "We will not walk in it."

Isaiah 30:21 (ESVUK) And your ears shall hear a word behind you, saying, "This is the way, walk in it", when you turn to the right or when you turn to the left.

Acts 24:14 (ESVUK) But this I confess to you, that according to the Way, which they call a sect, I worship the God of our fathers, believing everything laid down by the Law and written in the Prophets.

Acts 19:23 (ESVUK) About that time there arose no little disturbance concerning the Way.

Genesis 3:24 (ESVUK) He drove out the man, and at the east of the garden of Eden he placed the cherubim and a flaming sword that turned every way to guard the way to the tree of life.

John 14:6 (NIVUK) Jesus answered, 'I am the way and the truth and the life. No one comes to the Father except through me.'

Isaiah 35:8 And an highway shall be there, and a way, and it shall be called The way of holiness; the unclean shall not pass over it; but it shall be for those: the wayfaring men, though fools, shall not err therein.

Notes

Key 10 - A Standard

"Raising up a standard against the lie of the enemy"

Meaning of concepts

A **standard** in Hebrew is a flag or banner, and we read that each tribe had their own flag and was arranged around the Tabernacle.

In Judges 1 we read that the tribe of Judah, who had a lion on their flag, went first when they marched to war.

God Himself will lift up His hand to the nations and set up a standard to bring in sons and daughters to Himself.

One of the Hebrew words for standard is *nes*, meaning to glow or sparkle.

Look out

Look out for the arising of a standard of his sons who are building up His body in unity through the determination to grow into fullgrown men, with the Son of the Father, the Head, and His sons, the body.

Remember

One of the names of Father is *Yahweh nissî*, my Lord is my banner:

Are you ready?

To be part of the company that is exposing the lies of the enemy and who will raise up a standard of His righteousness?

Key Lesson

May we raise up a standard according to our Father's standards with the love of His heart towards each other to bring in His righteousness, in a convoy of sons throughout the world, and glow and sparkle and shine for our Father.

Key 10 shows us the standard of the Kingdom of Heaven, which we can lift up as a flag against the enemy.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for all the verses about being awake and about righteousness and also about darkness and light.

Isaiah 59:19 So shall they fear the name of the LORD from the west, and his glory from the rising of the sun. When the enemy shall come in like a flood, the Spirit of the LORD shall lift up a standard against him.

Numbers 2:1-3 And the Lord spake unto Moses and unto Aaron, saying, ²Every man of the children of Israel shall pitch by his own standard, with the ensign of their father's house: far off about the tabernacle of the congregation shall they pitch. ³And on the east side toward the rising of the sun shall they of the standard of the camp of Judah pitch throughout their armies:

Judges 1:1-2 Now after the death of Joshua it came to pass, that the children of Israel asked the LORD, saying, Who shall go up for us against the Canaanites first, to fight against them? ²And the LORD said, Judah shall go up: behold, I have delivered the land into his hand.

Isaiah 30:17 (NASB1995) One thousand will flee at the threat of one man; You will flee at the threat of five, Until you are left as a flag on a mountain to and as a signal on a hill.

Jeremiah 50:2a (NASB1995) Declare and proclaim among the nations. Proclaim it and lift up a standard. Do not conceal it but say, Babylon has been captured.

Isaiah 49:22 (NASB1995) Thus says the Lord God, "Behold, I will lift up My hand to the nations and set up My standard to the peoples; And they will bring your sons in their bosom, And your daughters will be carried on their shoulders.

	Notes
-	
_	
-	
_	

Key 11 - A Precious Pearl

"A change in ownership"

Meaning of concepts

Pearls are formed by the irritation of, for example, a sand particle. The irritation of the sand in the oyster when it tries to get rid of the grain of sand, adds layers of a translucent mineral which form a precious pearl. The Kingdom of Heaven is compared to such a precious pearl.

The word **owner** or **master** in Hebrew is the word Ba'al, also meaning to have *dominion over*, like a husband. In a dream, I saw the word Israel written as: Is(h) R El = Is ra el. I then realised it could stand for "Ish" are "El".

Look out

Are you willing to sell all for the precious pearl?

Remember

Be warned that not all people will appreciate this precious pearl. Christ taught this theme of selling everything when He confronted the rich young man who was of the opinion that he had obeyed the whole law, by challenging him to a still higher law. The Kingdom of Heaven, as a precious pearl, is therefore a change in ownership.

Are you ready?

In Scripture we are told to *count the cost*. Counting the cost means recognising and agreeing to some terms first. We cannot follow Him *and* the world's way at the same time. Following Him might mean the loss of relationships, dreams, material things, or even our lives. It requires a transfer of ownership. It is all about selling and buying. To whom do you belong?

Key Lesson

Ish in Hebrew means husband and *El* is God, meaning God is our Husband. In Hebrew the name *Ishi* is one of God's names. Yahweh Ishi thus means God our Husband. Who is your husband and to whom do you belong?

Key 11 shows you that the Kingdom of Heaven costs us everything of this world, but gives us everything of His kingdom.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for pearls, ownership, cost of the Kingdom of Heaven, gates.

Luke 14:28 For which of you, intending to build a tower, sitteth not down first, and counteth the cost, whether he have sufficient to finish it?

Hosea 2:16-17 And it shall be at that day, saith the LORD, that thou shalt call me Ishi; and shalt call me no more Baali. ¹⁷For I will take away the names of Baalim out of her mouth, and they shall no more be remembered by their name.

Isaiah 54:5 For thy Maker is thine husband; the LORD of hosts is his name; and thy redeemer the Holy One of Israel; The God of the whole earth shall he be called.

Matthew 13:45-46 Again, the kingdom of heaven is like unto a merchant man, seeking goodly pearls: ⁴⁶Who, when he had found one pearl of great price, went and sold all that he had, and bought it.

Matthew 19:21 Jesus said unto him, If thou wilt be perfect, go and sell that thou hast, and give to the poor, and thou shalt have treasure in heaven: and come and follow me.

Matthew 7:6 Give not that which is holy unto the dogs, neither cast ye your pearls before swine, lest they trample them under their feet, and turn again and rend you.

Revelation 21:21 (NIVUK) The twelve gates were twelve pearls, each gate made of a single pearl. The great street of the city was of gold, as pure as transparent glass.

Psalm 24:7 (NIVUK) Lift up your heads, you gates; be lifted up, you ancient doors, that the King of glory may come in.

Notes

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 12 - Voices

"Listening to the heart of the Father"

Meaning of concepts

In Hebrew, the word for **obey** is *shama*, which means to hear intelligently. **Voices** are all about listening to the heart of the Father. Be careful, however, the serpent has a voice mimicking the word of God, too. Father God can even speak through a donkey.

Adam heard God's voice when he received the command to rule and reign. Abel heard His voice telling him to bring the correct offer. Abraham heard His voice when he brought a tithe to the king of Salem. Melchizedek heard His voice when he brought bread and wine. This was *long before* there were any laws given through Moses yet, though these people obeyed Father's voice which they had heard themselves, directly from Father's heart.

In the New Testament, Christ took Peter, James, and John to a high mountain where He was then transfigured. Then Moses and Elijah appeared. Why those two?

Look out

To which voice do you listen? The voice of Moses is telling you that you are *not good enough*, since you do not obey all the laws. Elijah's voice is telling you that there is *enough time* in the future. The serpent's voice is *accusing* you. Your own voice is *condemning* you.

Remember

In the past, God has spoken through various ways. A certain day was appointed, through David, to hear the *Son's* voice, and *that day is now!*

Are you ready?

To listen to God's voice, a gentle whisper.

Key Lesson

Silence these voices, just as Zacharia's voice was silenced when he did not believe that a son would be born for him.

Key 12 helps you to silence the voices that condemn you and to hear the voice of the Father and to obey Him.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for the different voices and how God spoke (speaks), and how we can obey.

Hebrews 1:1-2 (NIVUK) In the past God spoke to our ancestors through the prophets at many times and in various ways, ² but in these last days he has spoken to us by his Son, whom he appointed heir of all things, and through whom also he made the universe.

Numbers 22:28a And the Lord opened the mouth of the ass (donkey)...

Genesis 3:1a Now the serpent was more subtil than any beast of the field which the Lord God had made. And he said unto the woman...

Hebrews 4:7 Again, he limiteth a certain day, saying in David, Today, after so long a time; as it is said, Today, if ye will hear his voice, harden not your hearts.

Exodus 20:19 (NIVUK) and said to Moses, 'Speak to us yourself and we will listen. But do not let God speak to us or we will die.'

1 Kings 19:12 (NIVUK) After the earthquake came a fire, but the Lord was not in the fire. And after the fire came a gentle whisper.

Romans 3:21 But now the righteousness of God without the law is manifested, being witnessed by the law and the prophets.

1 John 3:20 (NIVUK) If our hearts condemn us, we know that God is greater than our hearts, and he knows everything.

Luke 1:20 And, behold, thou shalt be dumb, and not able to speak, until the day that these things shall be performed, because thou believest not my words, which shall be fulfilled in their season.

Notes

Key 13 - See

"To understand the Kingdom of Heaven, we must first recognise and see it for what it is."

Meaning of concepts

The blood of Christ is the sign of the blood covenant.

Christ said He was the only Way to the Father.

In this first part, at the first door of the Tabernacle, we are shown the Way.

This is the first step we take before we can enter in.

We see the door to the Kingdom, which is Christ.

If we cannot *see* there *is* a Kingdom of Heaven, we will not be able to enter.

Look out

For the opening of your eyes to see that there are only two kingdoms: Babylon or Heaven.

Remember

In this first part of the Tabernacle is the altar where the offers were brought. Jesus became the Lamb that was offered once and for all, and He fulfilled all the shadows of the Old Testament.

Are you ready?

To give yourself as a living sacrifice?

Key Lesson

The first step before you can enter and inherit from this Kingdom, is to see and acknowledge that there is a Kingdom of Heaven.

Key 13 opens your eyes to the Kingdom of Heaven.

Scriptures

Read and search for Scriptures about seeing, the first part of the Tabernacle, the Lamb, and the Kingdom of Heaven.

John 3:3 Jesus answered and said unto him, Verily, verily, I say unto thee, Except a man be born again, he cannot see the kingdom of God.

John 6:44 No man can come to me, except the Father which hath sent me draw him: and I will raise him up at the last day.

Hebrews 10:10 (NIVUK) And by that will, we have been made holy through the sacrifice of the body of Jesus Christ once for all.

John 1:29 (ESVUK) The next day he saw Jesus coming towards him, and said, "Behold, the Lamb of God, who takes away the sin of the world!

Revelation 13:8 And all that dwell upon the earth shall worship him, whose names are written in the book of life of the Lamb slain from the foundation of the world.

Romans 12:1 I beseech you therefore, brethren, by the mercies of God, that ye present your bodies a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable unto God, which is your reasonable service.

1 Corinthians 7:23 (NIVUK) You were bought at a price; do not become slaves of human beings.

John 9:41 Jesus said unto them, If ye were blind, ye should have no sin: but now ye say, We see; therefore your sin remaineth.

Mark 8:18 Having eyes, see ye not? and having ears, hear ye not? and do ye not remember?

Notes

Key 14 - Enter

"Only the Royal Priesthood may enter the Kingdom of Heaven"

Meaning of concepts

After you have recognised and seen the Kingdom of Heaven, you can enter into it.

The second part of the Tabernacle is the part where only the Priests may enter.

The Priests washed them before entering the second part, after they had offered the animals.

Here the Holy Spirit baptises us and washes us with the Word.

Here, in the second part, were the showbread and the lampstand.

This second part is the truth of the Holy Spirit brought by the Word (the showbread) and the Light (the lampstand).

Here, in the second part, we are now friends with Christ and enter into a salt covenant which cannot be broken.

Look out

We are a Royal Priesthood and therefore we also have entrance here, just as we can enter the Kingdom of Heaven after we have recognised and seen it.

Remember

At the entrance to the third part of the Tabernacle, we get the altar of incense. This is a shadow of the real altar of incense in heaven.

Are you ready?

To be washed by the word and to be led into the truth of the Spirit, to enter into the second part of the Tabernacle, where the showbread and the menorah are, and where the altar of incense is (just before the third part, the Holy of Holies).

Key Lesson

After we have seen the Kingdom of Heaven, we will be able to enter in. Revelation 8 speaks about our prayers being taken to the throne of Father and as incense before God, as coals on the altar. This reminds us that our prayers are taken to the heavenly altar as incense before Father after we have entered into the Kingdom of Heaven.

Key 14 enables you to enter into the Kingdom of Heaven as a royal priesthood, being a kingly priest.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for: enter in, second part of tabernacle and worshipping in truth and power.

John 3:5 Jesus answered, Verily, verily, I say unto thee, except a man be born of water and of the Spirit, he cannot enter into the kingdom of God.

2 Chronicles 13:5 (NIVUK) Don't you know that the Lord, the God of Israel, has given the kingship of Israel to David and his descendants for ever by a covenant of salt?

1 Peter 2:9 But ye are a chosen generation, a royal priesthood, an holy nation, a peculiar people; that ye should shew forth the praises of him who hath called you out of darkness into his marvellous light;

Revelation 8:3 And another angel came and stood at the altar, having a golden censer; and there was given unto him much incense, that he should offer it with the prayers of all saints upon the golden altar which was before the throne.

Matthew 5:20 (NASB1995) For I say to you that unless your right-eousness surpasses that of the scribes and Pharisees, you will not enter the kingdom of heaven.

Mark 10:24 (NIVUK) The disciples were amazed at his words. But Jesus said again, 'Children, how hard it is to enter the kingdom of God!

Matthew **19:23** (*NASB*1995) *And Jesus said to His disciples, "Truly I say to you, it is hard for a rich man to enter the kingdom of heaven.*

Mark 9:47 (*NASB*1995) *If your eye causes you to stumble, throw it out;* it is better for you to enter the kingdom of God with one eye, than, having two eyes, to be cast into hell.

Notes	

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 15 - Inherit

"Inherit from the Kingdom of Heaven"

Meaning of concepts

Now we come to the third part of the Tabernacle, where we meet the Father through His Son.

Only the high priest was allowed here once a year to do atonement for the nation. (More about this and the scapegoat later.)

We know that the veil to the Holy of the Holies was torn in two, opening the way to the Father, who is the Life, once and for all, through the offering that Christ brought for us.

We have free access to the throne of grace, the mercy seat, which covers the ark of the covenant.

Here we find LIFE from the Father. He wants us to run through the WAY, through Christ, via the TRUTH in the Spirit, directly to His lap and into His heart.

Look out

The aim of Christ was and is to reconcile us to the Father, but we must have His identity.

Remember

He has given us the ministry of reconciliation. When we are reconciled to Him, we intercede for others.

Are you ready?

We know that to inherit there should be a testament and that there should be a death of the Testator. The book of Hebrews tells us that Christ has died, and that the testament is now in force. Furthermore, there should also be witnesses to the testament. Scripture tells us that there are: three witnesses in Heaven: Father, the Word, and the Spirit, and three on earth: Spirit, water, and blood, and that these three agree.

Key Lesson

When we have seen the Kingdom of Heaven and entered into it in the second part, we now have to provide our ID to *inherit* all in the third part. Do you have your identity card?

Key 15 shows you that you can inherit from the Heavenly Kingdom's treasury, when you show your ID card at the reading of the Testament.

Scriptures

Read the scriptures and search for inheritance, the testament, and the witnesses.

1 Corinthians 15:50 Now this I say, brethren, that flesh and blood cannot inherit the kingdom of God; neither doth corruption inherit incorruption.

Hebrews 9:16-17 For where a testament is, there must also of necessity be the death of the testator. For a testament is of force after men are dead: otherwise it is of no strength at all while the testator liveth.

1 John 5:7-10 For there is three that bear record in heaven, the Father, the Word, and the Holy Ghost: and these three are one. ⁸And there are three that bear witness in earth, the Spirit, and the water, and the blood: and these three agree in one. ⁹If we receive the witness of men, the witness of God is greater: for this is the witness of God which he hath testified of his Son. ¹⁰He that believeth on the Son of God hath the witness in himself: he that believeth not God hath made him a liar; because he believeth not the record that God gave of his Son. And this is the record, that God hath given to us eternal life, and this life is in his Son.

Notes

Key 16 - Identity

"Identity in the Kingdom of Heaven"

Meaning of concepts

To be a son, you have to be born from the seed of a specific father, which gives you your lineage. Matthew 1 speaks of the 14 generations from Abraham to David, 14 generations from David to the exile, and 14 generations from the exile to Christ. When you write down all the names mentioned, you will find that there is a missing 14th generation in the third and last group, as Yahshua is the 41st generation. Who is the mysterious 42nd generation? *We* are this 42nd generation – heirs according to the promise made to Abraham and his seed that is Christ in us. Psalm 24 speaks about a generation that would seek the face of God in the Holy of Holies with a David's heart.

Look out

To be born as sons in the Kingdom of Heaven has a huge significance for the time in which we are living, and to be able to present our heavenly identity card to receive our heavenly citizenship will require a new birth, which will bring in the inheritance.

Remember

Our identity and citizenship are not of our earthly fathers, but from our Father in Heaven. We did not get this inheritance as sons because of anything *we* did, but because of *His* righteousness and Him choosing us as His heirs.

Are you ready?

To walk in your new identity and get your heavenly citizenship?

Key Lesson

I had a dream where I had to hand in my ID card to receive a passport to board a plane waiting for me. In the dream, I was really struggling to get back to the counter to finalise this process, showing me that we are struggling with our heavenly identity.

Key 16 shows you that you are part of the 42nd generation, which gives you citizenship in heaven, which is in contrast with the citizenship of this world.

Scriptures

Read the scriptures and search for all the verses about identity and lineages, including father-and-son relationship, as well as seed.

Matthew 1:17 So all the generations from Abraham to David are fourteen generations; and from David until the carrying away into Babylon are fourteen generations; and from the carrying away into Babylon unto Christ are fourteen generations.

Psalm 24:6 This is the generation of them that seek him, that seek thy face, O Jakob. Selah.

Galatians 3:16,29 Now to Abraham and his seed were the promises made. He saith not, And to seeds, as of many; but as of one, And to thy seed, which is Christ...

²⁹ And if ye be Christ's, then are ye Abraham's seed, and heirs according to the promise.

Philippians 3:20 (NIVUK) But our citizenship is in heaven. And we eagerly await a Saviour from there, the Lord Jesus Christ.

Ephesians 2:6,12 And hath raised us up together, and made us sit together in heavenly places in Christ Jesus: ...

¹²That at that time ye were without Christ, being aliens from the commonwealth (Citizenship) of Israel, and strangers from the covenants of promise, having no hope, and without God in the world:

Romans 4:13 For the promise, that he should be the heir of the world, was not to Abraham, or to his seed, through the law, but through the righteousness of faith.

Notes

Key 17 - Jump

"You are Number 51"

Meaning of concepts

My brother, Pottie, had a dream where he heard a voice saying, "Jump, you are number 51." In the book, *Hearing God*, **number 51** means to receive your revelations directly from Father, including meaning to become one with the Father and receive the title of son. In the Bible, the word **jump** is from a Greek word, meaning *leap*, and a Hebrew word, meaning the *quickening of a foetus*.

Elizabeth's name means *oath*, in the sense of God of the oath. **Salute** means to embrace, like Mary and Elizabeth embraced each other. The salute brought the jumping of John.

Look out

For the quickening (jumping) of the foetus of sonship in us that we can bring forth Christ in us.

Remember

Christ already did everything and overcame death and was resurrected on the third day to enable the foetus to jump, like Christ (the Saviour) in Mary had quickened John (the beloved) in Elizabeth.

Are you ready?

To embrace (salute) sonship to thereby activate (jump) this foetus positioned in you?

Key Lesson

When you hear directly from Father and embrace your position in Him, you are "jumping" (quickened), and sonship can be born in you.

Key 17 enables you to embrace your sonship like Mary – pregnant with Christ – had embraced Elizabeth, which caused the foetus John to jump, while he was filled with the Holy Spirit.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for quickening, leaping, salute, Mary, and Elizabeth.

Luke 1:41 And it came to pass, that, when Elisabeth heard the salutation of Mary, the babe leaped in her womb; and Elisabeth was filled with the Holy Ghost:

Luke 1:44 For, lo, as soon as the voice of thy salutation sounded in mine ears, the babe leaped in my womb for joy.

Genesis 22:15-17 (NASB1995) Then the angel of the Lord called to Abraham a second time from heaven, ¹⁶ and said, "By Myself I have sworn, declares the Lord, because you have done this thing and have not withheld your son, your only son, ¹⁷ indeed I will greatly bless you, and I will greatly multiply your seed as the stars of the heavens and as the

sand which is on the seashore; and your seed shall possess the gate of their enemies.

Psalm 110:1-4 (NASB1995) The Lord says to my Lord: "Sit at My right hand Until I make Your enemies a footstool for Your feet." ² The Lord will stretch forth Your strong scepter from Zion, saying, "Rule in the midst of Your enemies." ³ Your people will volunteer freely in the day of Your power; In holy array, from the womb of the dawn, Your youth are to You as the dew. ⁴ The Lord has sworn and will not change His mind, "You are a priest forever According to the order of Melchizedek."

1 Corinthians 15:45 And so it is written, The first man Adam was made a living soul; the last Adam was made a quickening spirit.

Galatians 3:21 Is the law then against the promises of God? God forbid: for if there had been a law given which could have given life, verily righteousness should have been by the law.

Romans 8:11 But if the Spirit of him that raised up Jesus from the dead dwell in you, he that raised up Christ from the dead shall also quicken your mortal bodies by his Spirit that dwelleth in you.

Notes			

Key 18 - Oath

"That we will inherit from His Kingdom in Abraham"

Meaning of concepts

To swear an **oath** is the most binding form of speech, and is a type of language which Father used in relation to our inheritance. He promised Abraham and his seed blessings and sealed it with an oath, swearing unto Himself as there was no one higher. An oath to Abraham, David, and their seed into the generations, up to the last generation, which ended with John. Despite meaning seven and completeness and an end of works, an **oath** also means a limit or a fence.

What is the limit of the oath? The oath is the end of all strife (it settles a dispute). What struggle or conflict does it end? Trying to get righteousness through self. John the Baptist was beheaded by an oath. John was the end of the Levitical order. With his beheading there was no one to take over the role of priest given to him from both his mother, Elizabeth, meaning *oath* and Father, Zachariah, meaning, *Yah will help*, who were both from the Levite tribe.

Look out

When you get rid of the orphan spirit and realise that you are a son of Father, you stop trying or struggling to earn your sonship.

Remember

When God takes an oath there is no one bigger than Him and he takes an oath by Himself, meaning what He says *is true* and His promises *will become true*.

Are you ready?

God swears to us that the offspring of Abraham will possess the gate of the enemies and be priests of the order of Melchizedek, that is sonship.

Key Lesson

Even as Father swears with an oath that His Son shall inherit all things, so He swears that everyone who receives this calling, Christ in us as sons, will receive and inherit all that Father has.

Key 18 enables you step into the promised land when you believe that God's promises are binding by His own oath.

Scriptures

Read the scriptures and search for oath, swear, seed, inherit the throne.

Hebrews 6:13-17 For when God made promise to Abraham, because he could swear by no greater, he swear by himself, Saying, Surely blessing I will bless thee, and multiplying I will multiply thee. And so, after he

had patiently endured, he obtained the promise. For men verily swear by the greater: and an oath for confirmation is to them an end of all strife. Wherein God, willing more abundantly to shew unto the heirs of promise the immutability of his counsel, confirmed it by an oath:

Jeremiah 33:17 (NIVUK) For this is what the LORD says: "David will never fail to have a man to sit on the throne of Israel,

1 Kings 9:5 (NIVUK) I will establish your royal throne over Israel for ever, as I promised David your father when I said, "You shall never fail to have a successor on the throne of Israel."

Matthew 14:7 Whereupon he promised with an oath to give her whatsoever she would ask.

Luke 16:16 (NIVUK) The Law and the Prophets were proclaimed until John. Since that time, the good news of the kingdom of God is being preached, and everyone is forcing their way into it.

Luke 1:48 (NIVUK) For he has been mindful of the humble state of his servant. From now on all generations will call me blessed.

Luke 1:72-73 (NASB1995) To show mercy toward our fathers, And to remember His holy covenant, ⁷³ The oath which He swore to Abraham our father,

Acts 2:30 Therefore being a prophet, and knowing that God had sworn with an oath to him, that of the fruit of his loins, according to the flesh, he would raise up Christ to sit on his throne.

Notes

Key 19 - Firstborn Right

"Firstborn right of the Kingdom of Heaven"

Meaning of concepts

When we stand ready to inherit, the most important fact to consider is the **right** of the firstborn son. The firstborn right can be *lost*, like in the case of the eldest son of Jacob, Reuben. It can be *sold*, as Esau sold it for a pot of soup. It can be *changed*, as Jacob did. Jacob himself changed the natural order of blessings when he blessed the children of Joseph, placing the younger before the elder son. Because of sin, Jacob's firstborn son, Reuben, forfeited his birth right blessing. Once the father gave his blessing, he could not take it back, even if it was obtained by deception, such as in the case of Jacob and Esau's birth right.

Look out

The firstborn son was given certain unique rights, responsibilities, and privileges. He was the primary heir of the estate, which involved a double portion for firstborn inheritance rights with a leadership position in building the family.

Remember

Christ is the heir of all things and builder of the family (body). In Him we are the eldest son. He is the Passover Lamb who kept the angel of death from taking the eldest sons, like in Egypt.

Are you ready?

To bring in many sons and daughters? The eldest son was also seen as the opener of the womb and was set apart to Father God. The Levite tribe took on this position after the exodus from Egypt, which was replaced by Christ as the eldest of the new order of Melchizedek, of which we are now being born.

Key Lesson

The importance of the firstborn son had its pinnacle in Christ, who, although He is from eternity to eternity, has taken on a physical form to become the image of the invisible Father God and be born as His only begotten Son on earth, but also become the firstborn from the dead, to earn for us all of the firstborn rights.

Key 19 enables you not to sell your firstborn right for your fleshly lusts as Esau did.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for firstborn right, eldest son and Jacob and Esau.

1 Chronicles 5:1-2 (ESVUK) The sons of Reuben the firstborn of Israel (for he was the firstborn, but because he defiled his father's bed, his birthright was given to the sons of Joseph the son of Israel, so that he could not be enrolled as the oldest son; ² though Judah became strong among his brothers and a chief came from him, yet the birthright belonged to Joseph)

Hebrews 12:16-17 (NASB1995) that there be no immoral or godless person like Esau, who sold his own birthright for a single meal.

Colossians 1:18 And he is the head of the body, the church: who is the beginning, the firstborn from the dead; that in all things he might have the preeminence.

Numbers 3:12-13 And I, behold, have taken the Levites from among the children of Israel instead of all the firstborn that openeth the matrix among the children of Israel: therefore, the Levites shall be mine; ¹³Because all the firstborn are mine; for on the day that I smote all the firstborn in the land of Egypt I hallowed unto me all the firstborn in Israel, both man and beast: mine shall they be: I am the Lord.

Psalm 89:27 Also I will make him my firstborn, higher than the kings of the earth.

Zechariah 12:10 (NASB1995) "I will pour out on the house of David and on the inhabitants of Jerusalem, the Spirit of grace and of supplication, so that they will look on Me whom they have pierced; and they will mourn for Him, as one mourns for an only son, and they will weep bitterly over Him like the bitter weeping over a firstborn.

Exodus 4:23 (NASB1995) So I said to you, 'Let My son go that he may serve Me'; but you have refused to let him go. Behold, I will kill your son, your firstborn.

Notes

Key 20 - Twins

"Express image of Christ"

Meaning of concepts

The birth of Christ through us, in the image of God, reminds us of the birth of **twins**, being an exact copy of the other, as the Greek word for **express image** means.

Therefore, the twins of Tamar are very relevant to explain Christ being formed in us as a twin, and exchanging a deposit (pledge) for the goat he promised. During the birth of the twins of Tamar, the midwife tied a scarlet thread around the wrist of the arm of Zerah, the twin reaching out of the birth canal first, to designate him as the firstborn. However, he drew back his arm, and Perez was born first.

Look out

Christ is the image of God. Adam was made in the image of God. We are conformed to Christ's image.

Remember

Although Christ is the Firstborn, He has now "drawn back" and is allowing us to be born as sons to ensure that He will be born through us.

Are you ready?

The Bible also mentions a scarlet thread on the Day of Atonement, when two goats were used for atonement of the nation. This story reminds us of the Scripture in Isaiah 1:18 about our sins, although being as scarlet, turning as white as snow.

Key Lesson

The exchange of the three items of Tamar for the goat reminds us of the two goats which are a shadow of Christ doing a total work on the cross and how the nation's sin could be removed in one day by Christ, the branch, as mentioned in Zachariah 3, to enable us (individually) and our nations (corporately) to be born as twins.

Key 20 makes you a twin brother of Christ, who is drawing back in order for us to come forth now.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for twins, scapegoat, day of atonement, and image of God.

Hebrews 1:3 Who being the brightness of his glory, and the express image of his person, and upholding all things by the word of his power, when he had by himself purged our sins, sat down on the right hand of the Majesty on high.

Colossians 1:15 (ESVUK) He is the image of the invisible God, the firstborn of all creation.

Romans 8:29 (ESVUK) For those whom he foreknew he also predestined to be conformed to the image of his Son, in order that he might be the firstborn among many brothers.

Genesis 1:27 So God created man in his own image, in the image of God created he him; male and female created he them.

Genesis 38:28-30 (NASB1995) Moreover, it took place while she was giving birth, one put out a hand, and the midwife took and tied a scarlet thread on his hand, saying, "This one came out first." ²⁹ But it came about as he drew back his hand, that behold, his brother came out. Then she said, "What a breach you have made for yourself!" So he was named Perez.

³⁰ Afterward his brother came out who had the scarlet thread on his hand; and he was named Zerah.

Isaiah 1:18 (NIVUK) 'Come now, let us settle the matter,' says the Lord. 'Though your sins are like scarlet, they shall be as white as snow; though they are red as crimson, they shall be like wool.

Zechariah 3:8-9 Hear now, O Joshua the high priest, thou, and thy fellows that sit before thee: for they are men wondered at: for, behold, I will bring forth my servant the Branch. For behold the stone that I have laid before Joshua; upon one stone shall be seven eyes: behold, I will engrave the graving thereof, saith the Lord of hosts, and I will remove the iniquity of that land in one day.

Notes

-		

Key 21 - Barabbas

"Son of Abba"

Meaning of concepts

Barabbas, whose name in Aramaic means "son of the father", who was a murderer and a thief, was set free, while two other prisoners were crucified with Christ on the cross. The story of these three persons teaches us something about God's righteousness with which we should be clothed. In Hebrew, **righteousness** means to be right, to trust like Abraham did, and to take God's right hand and walk with him, like Enoch did.

Look out

How do you see yourself? Do you give yourself 0 out of 10 (0/10) because you are "too bad a person" and do not deserve forgiveness? OR maybe a 7 out of 10 because you are giving it your best and are obeying God. OR, do you realise that you get 10 out of 10 because you are perfect *in Christ* and are set free, like Barabbas, without *doing* anything to earn or deserve such freedom? There is a righteousness of man, and then there is a righteousness of God.

Remember

When we are born, we are naked and in need of clothing. Adam and Eve found themselves naked and being clothed by Abba after

their fall. Or maybe we are not naked, but clothed with filthy clothes. Righteousness is a God-centred attribute, no man can attain it through his own efforts. In a world where everyone believes he is right, it is hard to accept the absolute standard and blueprint of God's righteousness.

Are you ready?

The Bible also mentions a scarlet thread on the Day of Atonement, when two goats were used for atonement of the nation. This story reminds us of the Scripture in Isaiah 1:18 about our sins, although being red as scarlet, turning as white as snow.

Key Lesson

Just as Zechariah states, because of the BRANCH, a nation's sins are forgiven in one day, the accuser rebuked, and we are clothed in new clothes and are in right standing with the Father.

Key 21 provides you with a 100% exam result, even though you were not present, as Christ has written the exam on your behalf.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for Barabbas, righteousness, and being clothed.

Matthew **27:26** *Then released he Barabbas unto them: and when he had scourged Jesus, he delivered him to be crucified.*

Genesis 15:6 (NIVUK) Abram believed the LORD, and he credited it to him as righteousness.

Genesis 6:9 (NIVUK) This is the account of Noah and his family. Noah was a righteous man, blameless among the people

Ezekiel 16:4 (NIVUK) On the day you were born your cord was not cut, nor were you washed with water to make you clean, nor were you rubbed with salt or wrapped in cloths.

Genesis 3:21 (NIVUK) The LORD God made garments of skin for Adam and his wife and clothed them.

Ephesians 4:24 (NIVUK) and to put on the new self, created to be like God in true righteousness and holiness.

Genesis **5:24** *And Enoch walked with God: and he was not; for God took him.*

Zechariah 3:3-4; 8 (NIVUK) Now Joshua was dressed in filthy clothes as he stood before the angel. ⁴The angel said to those who were standing before him, "Take off his filthy clothes." Then he said to Joshua, "See, I have taken away your sin, and I will put fine garments on you." Listen, ⁸High Priest Joshua, you and your associates seated before you, who are men symbolic of things to come: I am going to bring my servant, the Branch.

Notes		

-		

Key 22 – Sons of God

"The real sons of Abba"

Meaning of concepts

We also read about the sons of God presenting themselves to God in a kind of a council. Satan was amongst them. We also read that Satan challenged Christ on whether He was the Son of God. The reason why the Sanhedrin wanted to kill Christ was that they had accused Him of breaking the law of blasphemy, when He claimed that He was the Son of God. They were referring to the law that stated that if someone blasphemed the name of the Lord, he should be stoned, and by saying He was the Son of God, He was dishonouring God. In Hebrew, son is the word "ben" deriving from "banah" which means to build or obtain children. Therefore, a son was seen as the builder of the family name, including a nation.

Look out

Who are the real sons of God?

Remember

In the word we see that God had many sons, but not all built His family name and His nation. On the contrary, some rebelled against him, like Satan and the fallen angels. Therefore, Satan lost his position as builder of God's family, and he has been jealous

from the time of Adam and Eve in Eden. That was the very reason he misled them.

Are you ready?

For the disclosure of the sons of God?

Key Lesson

Father confirmed that Christ was His Son when a voice from heaven declared it on the Mount of Configuration in the face of two witnesses from the Old Testament, Moses and Elijah, as well as in front of His inner circle of disciples from the New Testament. Abba also confirmed it at the Jordan when Christ was baptised. IN Christ we are also a son of the Father, and earth awaits our revealing.

Key 22 shows the way, as a son of God in whom He is well pleased, to a seat at His council.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for council of God, son(s) of God, and earth groaning for the revealing of sons of God.

Genesis 6:2 That the sons of God saw the daughters of men that they were fair; and they took them wives of all which they chose.

Job 1:6 Now there was a day when the sons of God came to present themselves before the Lord, and Satan came also among them.

Psalm 82:1 (ESVUK) God has taken his place in the divine council; in the midst of the gods he holds judgement:

Luke 4:3 (ESVUK) The devil said to him, "If you are the Son of God, tell this stone to become bread."

John 19:7 (NIVUK) The Jewish leaders insisted, 'We have a law, and according to that law he must die, because he claimed to be the Son of God.'

Leviticus 24:16 (NIVUK) anyone who uses the name of the Lord blasphemously is to be put to death. The entire assembly must stone them. Whether foreigner or native-born, when they use the Name blasphemously they are to be put to death.

Romans 8:19 For the earnest expectation of the creature waiteth for the manifestation of the sons of God.

Philippians 2:15 That ye may be blameless and harmless, the sons of God, without rebuke, in the midst of a crooked and perverse nation, among whom ye shine as lights in the world.

2 Peter 1:17 For he received from God the Father honour and glory, when there came such a voice to him from the excellent glory, This is my beloved Son, in whom I am well pleased.

Luke 9:35 (NIVUK) A voice came from the cloud, saying, "This is my Son, whom I have chosen; listen to him."

Notes		

-		

Key 23 - Heavenly Kingdom

"A Kingdom not of this world"

Meaning of concepts

The Hebrew and Greek words for **Kingdom of Heaven** describe a royal realm and a royal reign and dominion. The principles of heaven are not of this world and the kingdom of Babel. It is the highest authority and above all else. The good news of The Kingdom of Heaven started to be preached after the end of John. Until John, The Law and The Prophets were proclaimed. After John, Christ Himself started to preach the good news about the Kingdom of heaven. Christ said that the least in this Kingdom of Heaven is greater than John the Baptist.

Look out

Should YOU therefore enter the Kingdom of Heaven, then YOU would also be greater than John! God's righteousness gives you entrance into the Kingdom of Heaven and an inheritance.

Remember

Christ is the manifestation of this Kingdom by defeating death and bringing life and immortality. The good news is the power of this Kingdom. The Holy Spirit is the seal (assurance) that the promises of this Kingdom are true.

Are you ready?

Ready to be part of the Kingdom of Heaven, which makes you part of an unshakeable kingdom? The sceptre of the Kingdom of Heaven is a sceptre of Justice. In the Kingdom of Heaven demons are driven out by the finger of God. The Kingdom of Heaven is about power. The signs are there that this Kingdom is here. We have been given the keys of the Kingdom of Heaven. We are warned not to shut the door for people to enter the Kingdom by being like the pharisees.

Key Lesson

There is a Kingdom of Heaven, and not everyone saying "Lord," shall enter in, but those doing Abba's will.

Key 23 enables you to realise that you are greater than John the Baptist when you have entered into the Kingdom of Heaven.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for the gospel of the Kingdom of Heaven, especially in Matthew 5.

- 1 Corinthians 4:20 For the kingdom of God is not in word, but in power.
- **2 Timothy 1:10** But is now made manifest by the appearing of our Saviour Jesus Christ, who hath abolished death, and hath brought life and immortality to light through the gospel:

Ephesians 5:5 For this ye know, that no whoremonger, nor unclean person, nor covetous man, who is an idolater, hath any inheritance in the kingdom of Christ and of God.

Hebrews 12:28 (NKJV) Therefore, since we are receiving a kingdom which cannot be shaken, let us have grace, by which we may serve God acceptably with reverence and godly fear.

Luke 11:20 (NIVUK) But if I drive out demons by the finger of God, then the kingdom of God has come upon you.

Luke 16:16 (NIVUK) The Law and the Prophets were proclaimed until John. Since that time, the good news of the kingdom of God is being preached, and everyone is forcing their way into it."

Luke 21:31 So likewise ye, when ye see these things come to pass, know ye that the kingdom of God is nigh at hand.

Luke 22:16-18 For I say unto you, I will not any more eat thereof, until it be fulfilled in the kingdom of God. ¹⁷And he took the cup, and gave thanks, and said, Take this, and divide it among yourselves. ¹⁸For I say unto you, I will not drink of the fruit of the vine, until the kingdom of God shall come.

Matthew 11:11 (NIVUK) Truly I tell you, among those born of women there has not risen anyone greater than John the Baptist; yet whoever is least in the kingdom of heaven is greater than he (John).

Matthew 13:11 He answered and said unto them, Because it is given unto you to know the mysteries of the kingdom of heaven, but to them it is not given.

Matthew 16:19 And I will give unto thee the keys of the kingdom of heaven: and whatsoever thou shalt bind on earth shall be bound in heaven: and whatsoever thou shalt loose on earth shall be loosed in heaven.

Matthew 23:13 But woe unto you, scribes and Pharisees, hypocrites! for ye shut up the kingdom of heaven against men: for ye neither go in yourselves, neither suffer ye them that are entering to go in.

Matthew 4:23 And Jesus went about all Galilee, teaching in their synagogues, and preaching the gospel of the kingdom, and healing all manner of sickness and all manner of disease among the people.

Matthew 5:20 For I say unto you, That except your righteousness shall exceed the righteousness of the scribes and Pharisees, ye shall in no case enter into the kingdom of heaven.

Matthew 6:10 (NIVUK) Your kingdom come, your will be done, on earth as it is in heaven.

Matthew 7:21 Not everyone that saith unto me, Lord, Lord, shall enter the kingdom of heaven; but he that doeth the will of my Father which is in heaven.

Romans 14:17 For the kingdom of God is not meat and drink; but righteousness, and peace, and joy in the Holy Ghost.

Notes

-		

Key 24 - Move

"Unto perfection"

Meaning of concepts

In **Hebrews 6:1** we read that we should "move beyond the elementary teachings about Christ and be taken forward to maturity" (NIVUK).

The Hebrew and Greek words used in the KJV for "perfection" (or maturity) mean to **complete**, to **finish** or to **become a full-grown** man.

The Greek word used for "move on" also means to carry.

The word compares us to the more perfect tabernacle not made by hands, referring back to **Hebrews 7** where Christ is the perfect High Priest of a perfect order with a perfect royal law.

Look out

We can now become glory carriers, having moved unto perfection, of a new ark of covenant, where His glory is displayed in and through us, on the total work of Christ.

Remember

Strong meat (solid food) is suitable for a full-grown man.

Are you ready?

Are you ready to move unto perfection and be a carrier of Father's glory as a perfect, full-grown son?

Key Lesson

The perfect will of God is that we should be transformed by the renewing of our minds, exactly what "repent" also means in Greek. We still know in part, but it will be done away with when that which is perfect comes, and we are challenged to move on from understanding as a child to understand as a full-grown man, to be able to see Christ face to face.

Key 24 enables you to move from milk to meat, which is the perfection in Christ.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for perfection or completeness and moving on from being a child to a grown "man-child".

Hebrews 6:1-3 Therefore leaving the principles of the doctrine of Christ, let us go on unto perfection; not laying again the foundation of repentance from dead works, and of faith toward God, ² of the doctrine of baptisms, and of laying on of hands, and of resurrection of the dead, and of eternal judgment. ³ And this will we do, if God permit.

Hebrews 5:14 But strong meat belongeth to them that are of full age, even those who by reason of use have their senses exercised to discern both good and evil.

Romans 12:2 (NKJV) And do not be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewing of your mind, that you may prove what is that good and acceptable and perfect will of God.

1 Corinthians 13:10-12 But when that which is perfect is come, then that which is in part shall be done away. ¹¹ When I was a child, I spake as a child, I understood as a child, I thought as a child: but when I became a man, I put away childish things. ¹²For now we see through a glass, darkly; but then face to face: now I know in part; but then shall I know even as also I am known.

Hebrews 9:11-12 But Christ being come an high priest of good things to come, by a greater and more perfect tabernacle, not made with hands, that is to say, not of this building; ¹²neither by the blood of goats and calves, but by his own blood he entered in once

Matthew 5:48 Be ye therefore perfect, even as your Father which is in heaven is perfect.

Ephesians 4:13 Till we all come in the unity of the faith, and of the knowledge of the Son of God, unto a perfect man, unto the measure of the stature of the fulness of Christ:

Notes		

Key 25 - Frequency

"Heaven's new sound"

Meaning of concepts

David's harp brought a demon to silence. The sound of shofars and the shout of the army of Joshua brought down the walls of Jericho. Daniel's prayer was heard when he thought about his nation's sins and judgement. Hannah's prayers were heard though she prayed in her heart. The blood of Abel had a voice (frequency). Father God created the universe through His voice and therefore through frequencies or sounds.

Look out

Have you ever pondered on the sound and frequency that you bring forth? Do you have a frequency that brings comfort for the weary? Or is your tongue having a frequency like the poison of a snake? Be careful with what you have in your heart, as Abba answers us according to the sound in our heart and we will hear an answer accordingly. If we would not release Abba's heavenly sound, He would even talk through a donkey or through rocks to release His frequency and truth. Our prayers have a frequency, and a sound is brought before Father and is offered upon the true golden altar of incense in heaven and then has a reaction and is sent out to earth.

Remember

Your words have creative power. Life and death are in the power of the tongue.

Are you ready?

To learn a new sound like the harpers in Revelation learned a new sound?

Key Lesson

Will you bring forth a frequency of life, peace, and forgiveness as the good news of the Kingdom of Heaven is supposed to be a beautiful sound coming over the mountains to those that are carrying a heavy yoke of the old system and the kingdom of Babylon.

Key 25 provides you with the frequency of David's harp, which is the frequency of the Father's love.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for voice, sound, and frequency.

1 Samuel 16:23 (NIVUK) Whenever the spirit from God came on Saul, David would take up his lyre and play. Then relief would come to Saul; he would feel better, and the evil spirit would leave him.

Joshua 6:20 (NIVUK) When the trumpets sounded, the army shouted, and at the sound of the trumpet, when the men gave a loud shout, the wall collapsed; so everyone charged straight in, and they took the city.

Daniel 10:12 (NIVUK) Then he continued, 'Do not be afraid, Daniel. Since the first day that you set your mind to gain understanding and to humble yourself before your God, your words were heard, and I have come in response to them.

1 Samuel 1:13 (NIVUK) Hannah was praying in her heart, and her lips were moving but her voice was not heard. Eli thought she was drunk.

Genesis 4:10 (NIVUK) The LORD said, 'What have you done? Listen! Your brother's blood cries out to me from the ground.

Genesis 1:3 And God said, "Let there be light," and there was light.

Proverbs 18:21 Death and life are in the power of the tongue: and they that love it shall eat the fruit thereof.

Isaiah 50:4 The Lord God hath given me the tongue of the learned, that I should know how to speak a word in season to him that is weary: he wakeneth morning by morning, he wakeneth mine ear to hear as the learned.

Ezekiel 14:4 Therefore speak unto them, and say unto them, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Every man of the house of Israel that setteth up his idols in his heart, and putteth the stumblingblock of his iniquity before his face, and cometh to the prophet; I the LORD will answer him that cometh according to the multitude of his idols.

Numbers 22:28 (NIVUK) Then the LORD opened the donkey's mouth, and it said to Balaam, 'What have I done to you to make you beat me these three times?"

Luke 19:40 (NIVUK) 'I tell you,' He replied, 'if they keep quiet, the stones will cry out.'

Zephaniah 3:9 (NIVUK) Then I will purify the lips of the peoples, that all of them may call on the name of the LORD and serve him shoulder to shoulder.

Revelation 8:3-5 (NIVUK) Another angel, who had a golden censer, came and stood at the altar. He was given much incense to offer, with the prayers of all God's people, on the golden altar in front of the throne.

⁴ The smoke of the incense, together with the prayers of God's people, went up before God from the angel's hand. ⁵ Then the angel took the censer, filled it with fire from the altar, and hurled it on the earth; and there came peals of thunder, rumblings, flashes of lightning and an earthquake.

Romans 10:14-15 How then shall they call on him in whom they have not believed? and how shall they believe in him of whom they have not heard? and how shall they hear without a preacher? ¹⁵And how shall they preach, except they be sent? as it is written, How beautiful are the (sound of the) feet of them that preach the gospel of peace, and bring glad tidings of good things!

Notes		

-		

Key 26 - DNA

"One New Man with the new DNA of Christ"

Meaning of concepts

DNA is the genetic instructions each person or organism has and human DNA contains 22 building blocks or "autosomes" (22 pairs of chromosomes) whereby any person is formed, which corresponds to the 22 building blocks of the Hebrew alphabet. Adam was created as one human, hosting both male and female chromosomes (that's why the father determines the sex of the baby).

It comes as a surprise to some that there are two creation stories in the Bible. Most remember only the second, which includes the rib incident, and not this first one "male and female He created them".

Two scientists, James Watson and Francis Collins, used models to show that DNA is shaped like a twisted ladder. This shape is called a double helix. According to science a man and a woman have 22 identical chromosome pairs consisting of X chromosomes, and *one additional pair*, named the "sex chromosomes" consists of an X and a Y, the 23rd pair. The Y will result in a male and the X in a female. This means that Adam necessarily had *all* of the human genetic variations in his DNA for Eve to came from

Adam's DNA. Thus, men have "X+Y" chromosomes as the 23rd pair, where women have "X+X" as the 23rd pair.

Note: If the Bible had proclaimed that the first human was a woman, the Bible would be in error, since women do not have the Y chromosome, without which man could not have been formed from the woman's rib (DNA). When science is confirmed by the Bible, that is true science. Every living human being, including Eve, came from Adam's DNA.

Look out

Christ gives you newness of life, a new creature, and a new creation.

Remember

Remember, in Christ there are neither male nor female. The bride of Christ will be neither male or female, but *one joined body*, coming out of the side of Christ, just as Eve came from the side of Adam.

She will be the wife of Christ, having a new body, being joined to Him, He the Head she the body, being one, as Adam and Eve were one with the creation, Christ is the second Adam.

The Creator is actively involved in His creation, and we have Biblical evidence that He has "changed" or "reset" our human DNA at least twice in the past. The first time that Abba spoke a change to the immortal Adam and Eve, was when they had sinned in the Garden, and they and consequently all of humanity became mortal. Something changed in the DNA to make them mortal as they used to be immortal.

The second time was after the flood, when God reduced the human lifespan from 900+ years to what we still have currently, 120 at best, but between 70 or 80 on average. Something again changed in the DNA to have this effect. So, how does God change/reset DNA? Remember, He *spoke* all things into existence by means of His Word, and, therefore, the entire creation is responsive to His Word. DNA, in particular, is noticeably a language with letters, words, sentences, and paragraphs. Francis Collins, the director of the human genome project, wrote a book titled, *DNA The Language of God*.

Are you ready?

Christ told the storm and waves to be quiet and still, and they obeyed. He called out in a loud voice to the dead, rotting body of Lazarus to come out of the grave, and he came out alive. Christ told the fig tree, "Let no fruit grow on thee," and the fig tree "withered away".

Key Lesson

When Christ appears in us, we will be like Him. Our bodies will be like His was when He appeared on earth for 40 days after His resurrection and before His ascension. The Bible talks about a third time when we will be reset to a changed state, that is the *immortal* state.

In a twinkling of an eye, we will be changed to have immortality just as it was with Adam at the beginning. Our DNA is like a twisted ladder (a double helix) and the only time the word "ladder" is used in the Bible is when Jacob dreamed about the ladder into heaven. You are no longer who the world, the devil, or your past says you are. You are who Christ says you are, and you have His DNA and you can go up and down into heaven. (Read about James Watson, Francis Crick, etc. who discovered this in 1953.)

Key 26 assures us that, with the new DNA of Christ, we are like a ladder into heaven.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for the creation of Adam and Eve and a new creation.

Romans 6:4 (NASB1995) Therefore we have been buried with Him through baptism into death, so that as Christ was raised from the dead through the glory of the Father, so we too might walk in newness of life.

2 Corinthians 5:17 Therefore if any man be in Christ, he is a new creature: old things are passed away; behold, all things are become new.

Genesis 5:2 Male and female created he them; and blessed them, and called their name Adam, in the day when they were created.

Genesis 6:3 (NIVUK) Then the LORD said, 'My Spirit will not contend with humans forever, for they are mortal; their days will be a hundred and twenty years.'

Psalm 90:10 (NIVUK) Our days may come to seventy years, or eighty, if our strength endures.

1 Corinthians 15:52 In a moment, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trump: for the trumpet shall sound, and the dead shall be raised incorruptible, and we shall be changed.

Genesis 28:12 And he dreamed, and behold a ladder set up on the earth, and the top of it reached to heaven: and behold the angels of God ascending and descending on it.

Galatians 3:28 There is neither Jew nor Gentile, neither slave nor free, nor is there male and female, for you are all one in Christ Jesus.

Philippians 3:21 (NIVUK) who, by the power that enables him to bring everything under his control, will transform our lowly bodies so that they will be like his glorious body.

Notes		

-		

Key 27 - Side/Rib

"Come forth from the side of Christ"

Meaning of concepts

In Hebrew the word for a "rib" also means **side**. The first time we read about rib in the Bible is in Genesis 2:22 where Eve was made from the rib of Adam. In the New Testament we read how the soldiers pierced Christ's side, and how blood and water came out, reminding us to be born with blood and water, to overcome death through the side of Christ, to be His bride and sons.

Noah's ark had three storeys and a door at the side. In Acts 12:7 we read how the angel struck Peter on the side to wake him up. The Greek word for side also means rib. After the angel struck Peter, his chains fell off and he commanded him to gird himself (make ready), to put on his sandals (inheritance), and his outer garment (glory) – all relevant for us in this time.

Look out

The law had to be put at the side of the ark of covenant, covered with the mercy seat.

Remember

Thomas could not believe that Christ had risen from the dead. Only when he was able to put his finger in the risen Christ's side could he believe.

Are you ready?

To be awakened as Peter and to be born from "the side" of Christ as sons?

Key Lesson

As Eve was taken out of Adam's side and Christ was pierced in His side and Peter was struck on his side, we will be awakened and come forth as sons in these days of the earth crying out with birth pangs for the sons to be revealed. As in the days of Moses there is a door at the side of the ark where the witness of the law is covered under the mercy seat.

Key 27 opens up the side of Christ, so that you can come forth like Eve, from the *second* Adam, Christ.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for side, rib.

Genesis 2:22 (NIVUK) Then the LORD God made a woman from the rib he had taken out of the man, and he brought her to the man.

Acts 12:7 (NIVUK) Suddenly an angel of the Lord appeared and a light shone in the cell. He struck Peter on the side and woke him up. 'Quick, get up!' he said, and the chains fell off Peter's wrists

John 19:34 (NIVUK) Instead, one of the soldiers pierced Jesus' side with a spear, bringing a sudden flow of blood and water.

John 20:27 (NIVUK) Then he said to Thomas, 'Put your finger here; see my hands. Reach out your hand and put it into my side. Stop doubting and believe.'

Revelation 20:6 (ESVUK) Blessed and holy is the one who shares in the first resurrection! Over such the second death has no power, but they will be priests of God and of Christ, and they will reign with him for a thousand years.

Genesis 6:16 A window shalt thou make to the ark, and in a cubit shalt thou finish it above; and the door of the ark shalt thou set in the side thereof; with lower, second, and third stories shalt thou make it.

Deuteronomy 31:26 Take this book of the law, and put it in the side of the ark of the covenant of the LORD your God, that it may be there for a witness against thee.

Ezekiel 4:4 (NIVUK) Then lie on your left side and put the sin of the people of Israel upon yourself. You are to bear their sin for the number of days you lie on your side.

Notes		

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

Key 28 - In One Hour

"In the last hour"

Meaning of concepts

While we are currently in a dark hour of history, we are reminded of Isaiah 60 that promises us that we will shine bright in this time. Before the crucifixion of Christ, His disciples could not watch with Him even for an hour, and Peter denied Him three times in the space of an hour. We read in the book of Revelation that the kingdom of 10 kings, together with the beast, will only have an hour and that they will be judged and lose all their riches in an hour. Also be reminded that the workers who had only worked for an hour was paid for a full day's wages in the parable told by Christ. Daniel was overwhelmed for an hour about the dream of the huge statue.

Look out

For two thousand years we have been preparing for this hour of Kingdom of Heaven, but remember, to Abba a day is like a thousand years. Hosea 6:2 states that Christ will revive us after two days and on the third day restore us to live in His presence. What a privilege to be alive in this hour and be THAT generation who will seek the face of Abba in the Holiest of Holies.

Remember

Remember that in the time of that statue, God will set up His Kingdom that will endure forever and which will crush those kings.

Are you ready?

Are you taking up the keys of David to be priests and kings with Christ in this hour?

Key Lesson

Our peace is in Christ who states that those who have the keys of David will be kept from the hour of temptation that will come over the whole earth. We will be priests and kings in His Kingdom for a thousand years.

Key 28 assures you that you will be kept from the hour of temptation as you endure in His word.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for "hour".

Isaiah 60:1-3 (NIVUK) Arise, shine, for your light has come, and the glory of the Lord rises upon you. ²See, darkness covers the earth and thick darkness is over the peoples, but the Lord rises upon you and his glory appears over you. ³Nations will come to your light, and kings to the brightness of your dawn.

Mark 14:37 And he cometh, and findeth them sleeping, and saith unto Peter, Simon, sleepest thou? couldest not thou watch one hour?

Luke 22:59-60 And about the space of one hour after another confidently affirmed, saying, Of a truth this fellow also was with him: for he is a Galilaean. ⁶⁰And Peter said, Man, I know not what thou sayest. And immediately, while he yet spake, the cock crew.

Revelation 17:12 And the ten horns which thou sawest are ten kings, which have received no kingdom as yet; but receive power as kings one hour with the beast.

Revelation 18:10 Standing afar off for the fear of her torment, saying, Alas, alas, that great city Babylon, that mighty city! for in one hour is thy judgment come.

Revelation 18:17a For in one hour so great riches is come to nought.

Matthew 20:12 These who were hired last worked only one hour,' they said, 'and you have made them equal to us who have borne the burden of the work and the heat of the day.'

Daniel 4:19a Then Daniel, whose name was Belteshazzar, was astonied for one hour, and his thoughts troubled him.

Notes		

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

Key 29 - Blueprint

"Heavenly blueprints"

Meaning of concepts

A blueprint is a **design**, master **plan** or **pattern** of a model. The first time we find the word *pattern* in the Bible is when we read how Moses was shown the real tabernacle in heaven from which he had to make the earthly shadow or copy. We read that Father is the Architect and Builder of the New Jerusalem, which is also us (His bride). King David had also received a pattern or blueprint for the temple and buildings which he handed over to his son, Solomon. Christ is the living stone that was the rejected stone, who became the chief corner stone. The apostles and prophets were the foundation on which we are built as a holy temple wherein Abba's Spirit lives. Amos and Acts describe how the fallen tabernacle of David will be rebuilt, a temple not made by hands, which is us.

Look out

For the heavenly blueprints of which we have only seen a shadow here on earth.

Remember

How could we know what Christ our High Priest had done for us, if we did not have the Levitical order showing us the reason for a high priest? The same with Christ as Passover Lamb. How could we know about and appreciate His sacrifice on the cross if we did not have the example of the slaughtering of the lamb. The same with our prayers being brought before Abba as an incense, if we did not have the shadow of the altar of incense in the temple?

Are you ready?

To receive more revelations about the Kingdom of Heaven and its blueprints?

Key Lesson

We should know that there is a priesthood, a law, and blueprints in heaven of which we only have the shadows here on earth of what is real in heaven. God is revealing these blueprints to us now in order to operate in them as sons on the earth.

Key 29 enables you to receive heavenly blueprints and designs, just as David did for the earthly temple.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for shadows and patterns.

Exodus 25:9 (NASB1995) According to all that I am going to show you, as the pattern of the tabernacle and the pattern of all its furniture, just so you shall construct it.

Hebrews 8:5 (NASB1995) who serve a copy and shadow of the heavenly things, just as Moses was warned by God when he was about to erect the

tabernacle; for, "See," He says, "that you make all things according to the pattern which was shown you on the mountain."

- 1 Chronicles 28:19 All this, said David, the Lord made me understand in writing by his hand upon me, even all the works of this pattern.
- 1 Chronicles 28:11-12 (NASB1995) Then David gave to his son Solomon the plan of the porch of the temple, its buildings, its storehouses, its upper rooms, its inner rooms and the room for the mercy seat; ¹² and the plan of all that he had in mind, for the courts of the house of the Lord, and for all the surrounding rooms, for the storehouses of the house of God and for the storehouses of the dedicated things.
- **1 Peter 2:4-5 (NASB1995)** And coming to Him as to a living stone which has been rejected by men, but is choice and precious in the sight of God, ⁵ you also, as living stones, are being built up as a spiritual house for a holy priesthood, to offer up spiritual sacrifices acceptable to God through Jesus Christ.

Amos 9:11 (NLT) In that day I will restore the fallen house of David. I will repair its damaged walls. From the ruins I will rebuild it and restore its former glory.

Acts 15:16 After this I will return, and will build again the tabernacle of David, which is fallen down; and I will build again the ruins thereof, and I will set it up:

Notes

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 30 - Covenant

"A covenant relationship"

Meaning of concepts

From the beginning of the story of Abba Father as Creator God He has dealt with His creation, but especially with MAN, through a covenant relationship. The covenants had various steps and when we understand those steps, a whole treasure of pearls opens up for us of how Christ fulfilled all of the covenants. Although not described as a list in the Bible, we can find from research and history at least 14 steps of a covenant and at least 7 covenants in the Bible.

These covenants include:

- 1. Adamic covenant
- 2. Noahic covenant
- 3. Abrahamic covenant
- 4. Mosaic covenant

Steps:

- 1. A proposal
- 2. Counting the cost
- 3. The agreement
- 4. Witnesses / signs

- 5. Davidic covenant
- 6. Covenant with Israel
- 7. New covenant
- 5. Offer of blood
- 6. A death walk
- 7. A scar
- 8. Eating of a memorial meal

- 9. Exchanging of garments/robes
- 10. Exchanging of names
- 11. Exchanging of belts
- 12. Exchanging of weapons

- 13. Planting a memorial/tree
- 14. Unbreakable covenant of salt.

Look out

Ancient Hebrews used worn-out sandals to mark the boundaries of their property. God told the Hebrew people that wherever their feet would tread, would be their possession forever.

Remember

The last and final covenant became a testament.

Are you ready?

To move from a covenant to a testament and for moving from slave to son? Will you take off your sandals as a sign that you stand on holy ground as the inheritance is revealed?

Key Lesson

This is what Christ essentially did. He paid off the Old Covenant and established a New Covenant. The only way to alter one dot of the Mosaic Covenant is if someone comes along and fulfils it completely. Otherwise, all agreements are still in effect and unchangeable. Now, Christ has paid off all the requirements and steps of the covenants and has given us a Testament, wherein He allows us to inherit from Him.

Key 30 gives us assurance that Christ fulfilled all the covenants and then moved us over to a Testament.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for covenant and testament.

1 Corinthians 7:23 (NIVUK) You were bought at a price; do not become slaves of human beings.

John 15:15 (NLT) I no longer call you slaves, because a master doesn't confide in his slaves. Now you are my friends, since I have told you everything the Father told me.

Galatians 4:1 (NIVUK) What I am saying is that as long as an heir is underage, he is no different from a slave, although he owns the whole estate.

1 Peter 2:16 (NASB1995) Act as free men, and do not use your freedom as a covering for evil, but use it as bondslaves of God.

2 Corinthians 11:2 (NIVUK) I am jealous for you with a godly jealousy. I (betrothed) promised you to one husband, to Christ, so that I might present you as a pure virgin to him.

Deuteronomy 11:24 (NIVUK) Every place where you set your foot will be yours: your territory will extend from the desert to Lebanon, and from the River Euphrates to the Mediterranean Sea.

Ruth 4:8 (NIVUK) So the guardian-redeemer said to Boaz, 'Buy it yourself.' And he removed his sandal.

Exodus 3:5 (NIVUK) 'Do not come any closer,' God said. 'Take off your sandals, for the place where you are standing is holy ground.'

Galatians 3:15 Brethren, I speak after the manner of men; Though it be but a man's covenant, yet if it be confirmed, no man disannulleth, or addeth thereto.

Notes		

Key 31 - Judah

"Christ came through David from the tribe of the Lion of Judah"

Meaning of concepts

Judah is the tribe of the firstborn, by assignment. But why did Christ arise from the tribe of Judah if Judah was the fourth son of Jacob? For, although Reuben was technically Jacob's firstborn son, he forfeited the double-portion rights of inheritance, as well as Simeon and Levi, through their misconduct – and lost it to Judah, the fourth son, who was then promised to always have someone on the throne. We have a reverse parallel in the case of David who was promoted although he was the *youngest* of the sons of Jesse, becoming, in effect, the firstborn, for God looks at the heart. God confirmed this position of Judah, when He ordered Judah as the tribe to move first when leaving the camp or going to war.

Look out

The book of Hebrews shows the point of the fact that in coming from the tribe of Judah, Christ was not of the Levite priesthood.

Remember

When King David was allowed to eat from the showbread, only allowed to be eaten by priests appointed from the tribe of Levi, it indicated that the tribe of Judah was from another priesthood, just

as the disciples were allowed to eat from the grain fields on the Sabbath.

Are you ready?

Tamar had posed as a prostitute, and became pregnant from her father-in-law, Judah, with twins. When Judah wanted to burn his daughter-in-law to death because she was pregnant as a widow and the law required it, he did not realise she was pregnant from him. When he had slept with the prostitute, he did not know it was Tamar, his daughter-in-law. She, however, had a pledge from the man she had slept with, *his* own ring, staff and cord, to be exchanged for a goat, which he had to pay her for "services rendered".

Are you ready for the exchange of the pledge of the ring, the staff, and the cord? Are you willing to come forth and present your identity as Tamar did when she showed them the items Judah had given her as proof?

Key Lesson

In Christ, we are from the tribe of Judah, and if we present our identity as sons, we exchange our ID card for the staff, cord and ring of the tribe of Judah.

Key 31 allows us to realise our identity in Christ, who is from the Tribe of Judah, to move forward to exchange the staff, the cord and the ring of Judah, for the goat.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for the tribe of Judah.

Genesis 29:35 (NIVUK) She conceived again (4th child), and when she gave birth to a son she said, 'This time I will praise the LORD.' So she named him Judah. Then she stopped having children.

Genesis 49:10 (NIVUK) The sceptre will not depart from Judah, nor the ruler's staff from between his feet, until he to whom it belongs shall come and the obedience of the nations shall be his.

Numbers 10:14 (NIVUK) The divisions of the camp of Judah went first...

Hebrews 7:14 (NIVUK) For it is clear that our Lord descended from Judah, and in regard to that tribe Moses said nothing about priests.

Luke 6:1-5 (NIVUK) One Sabbath Jesus was going through the grainfields, and his disciples began to pick some heads of grain, rub them in their hands and eat the kernels. ² Some of the Pharisees asked, 'Why are you doing what is unlawful on the Sabbath?' Jesus answered them, 'Have you never read what David did when he and his companions were hungry? ⁴ He entered the house of God, and taking the consecrated bread, he ate what is lawful only for priests to eat. And he also gave some to his companions.' ⁵ Then Jesus said to them, 'The Son of Man is Lord of the Sabbath.'

Genesis 38:25 (NIVUK) As she was being brought out, she sent a message to her father-in-law (Judah). 'I am pregnant by the man who owns these,' she said. And she added, 'See if you recognise whose seal and cord and staff these are.'

Notes

_		

Key 32 - Full Measure

"The Full Measure of His Kingdom"

Meaning of concepts

There is a measure of a man and there is a measure of Father in Heaven. It is a good measure running over. Heaven's mathematics of measurement is not the same as ours. One night in my dreams I heard the words: The full measure of the double portion is not 12 + 12 which equals 24, but 12×12 which = 144.

Remember

In Mathematics, three-dimensional objects having depth, width and height are called solid shapes. When we add a fourth element to the equation, $w \times l \times h \times d$ it becomes a four-dimensional object, which our brains struggle to understand. It is exactly where we are in these days of His glory outpouring. We are entering dimensions which we cannot comprehend.

Look out

Kingdom mathematics multiply 1 seed into 30- or 60- or 100-fold seeds and the pay-back formula is 7-fold. Recently, Father also showed me that He is ONE, meaning Father, Son and Holy Spirit is not 1+1+1=3, but $1 \times 1 \times 1=1$.

Also note that 12 + 12 = 24, but $12 \times 12 = 144$, referring to the $144\ 000$ of Revelation. In the same manner is 600 + 60 + 6 = 666, but 600×100

60 x 6 gives you 216 000. Therefore, look out for the triple DNA string of possible gene therapy, which can lead to a third string of possibly 72 000 genes to be added to approximately 72 000 genes inherited from your father and 72 000 from your mother. A third 72 000 will give the sum of 216 000, which could also be the mark and number of the beast. (You can read more about this on Telegram, should you want to be added on the group Namibia's Prophetic Hour.)

Are you ready?

In Hebrew, the two staffs in Zechariah 11:10 and 14 which Zechariah broke, respectively mean **favour** (to agree) and **union** (to measure). Meaning to break the staffs which agree to measure. This connects us to Luke 6:38 telling us that we will be measured as we measure. Do heavenly mathematics and do not measure with the law.

Key Lesson

No height nor depth nor anything can separate us from Christ. Break the agreement to measure with the law. When my glass bathroom scale broke into a thousand pieces and a second new one only operated for a few days, Father reminded me of the verse telling us not to measure with the law.

Key 32 shows you how to use heavenly mathematics to get to the full measure, not to measure with the law, but a measurement which is more often rather an multiplication than a simple addition.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for measure, width, length, depth and height.

Revelation 21:17 And he measured the wall thereof, an hundred and forty and four cubits, according to the measure of a man, that is, of the angel.

Ephesians 3:18 may have power, together with all the Lord's holy people, to grasp how wide and long and high and deep is the love of Christ.

Ephesians 4:13 until we all reach unity in the faith and in the knowledge of the Son of God and become mature, attaining to the whole measure of the fullness of Christ.

Luke 6:38 Give, and it will be given to you. A good measure, pressed down, shaken together and running over, will be poured into your lap. For with the same measure that ye mete withal it shall be measured to you again.

Romans 8:39 neither height nor depth, nor anything else in all creation, will be able to separate us from the love of God that is in Christ Jesus our Lord.

Zechariah 11:10,14 And I took my staff, even Beauty, and cut it asunder, ... ¹⁴Then I cut asunder mine other staff, even Bands, that I might break the brotherhood between Judah and Israel

Mark 4:8 And other fell on good ground, and did yield fruit that sprang up and increased; and brought forth, some thirty, and some sixty, and some an hundred.

Notes

Key 33 - Mistaken Identity

A criminal case of mistaken identity, where we are accused by Satan for breaking the law.

Meaning of concepts

Scripture tells us that the heavenly court is set and books opened and God is the Judge, and Christ is our Advocate.

Satan attended such a court setting in Job, and demanded a date in the courts of heaven to accuse Peter and present the case he had against him. The word "asked" is the Greek word *exaiteomai*, and it means to **demand for trial**. This is because Satan uses legal things to stop us from getting all that is meant for us.

We must know how to present our case in the courts from the books of destiny in heaven. Christ lived totally as a man, filled with God through the Holy Spirit. So, when He prayed for Peter in the courts of heaven, He did this as a man. This means we, too, as human beings have access to the courts to perceive what is in our books of destiny and to secure that destiny as well.

Look out

For a new case: The accuser becomes the accused and a civil claim for damages is made because of defamation, as he has the wrong identity for us: in Christ it is not *us* who are sinning anymore, but the sin in us brought by Satan.

Remember

We are promised that we will also judge and keep His courts.

Are you ready?

To receive your verdict from the heavenly court and declare the book of your destiny to come to pass?

Key Lesson

David is declaring that there is a book in heaven that speaks not only of his makeup but also of his destiny and purpose in life. In the heavenly courts we can get a verdict that these books come alive in Christ.

Key 33 gives a guilty verdict in the case of mistaken identity against Satan.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for scenarios where the heavenly courts assembled, who your judge and advocate are.

Daniel 7:9-10 (NASB1995) "I kept looking until thrones were set up, and the Ancient of Days took His seat; His vesture was like white snow and the hair of His head like pure wool. His throne was ablaze with flames, its wheels were a burning fire. ¹⁰...The court sat, and the books were opened.

Isaiah 3:13 (NASB1995) The Lord arises to contend, and stands to judge the people.

1 John 2:1-2 (NASB1995) My dear children, I write this to you so that you will not sin. But if anybody does sin, we have an advocate with the Father—Jesus Christ, the Righteous One. ² He is the atoning sacrifice for our sins, and not only for ours but also for the sins of the whole world.

Romans 7:17 (NIVUK) As it is, it is no longer I myself who do it, but it is sin living in me.

Zechariah 3:1 And he shewed me Joshua the high priest standing before the angel of the Lord, and Satan standing at his right hand to resist him.

Luke 22:31 (NKJV) And the Lord said, "Simon, Simon! Indeed, Satan has asked for you, that he may sift you as wheat. But I have prayed for you, that your faith should not fail; and when you have returned to Me, strengthen your brethren."

Psalms 139:16 (NKJV) Your eyes saw my substance, being yet unformed. And in Your book they all were written, The days fashioned for me, When as yet there were none of them.

Zechariah 3:6-7 And the angel of the Lord protested unto Joshua, saying, Thus saith the Lord of hosts; If thou wilt walk in my ways, and if thou wilt keep my charge, then thou shalt also judge my house, and shalt also keep my courts, and I will give thee places to walk among these that stand by.

1 Corinthians 6:2-3 Do ye not know that the saints shall judge the world? and if the world shall be judged by you, are ye unworthy to judge the smallest matters? Know ye not that we shall judge angels? how much more things that pertain to this life?

1 John 3:9 Whosoever is born of God doth not commit sin; for his seed remaineth in him: and he cannot sin, because he is born of God.

Proverbs 6:30-31 People do not despise a thief if he steals to satisfy his hunger when he is starving. ³¹But if he be found, he shall restore sevenfold; he shall give all the substance of his house.

Revelation 12:10 (NIVUK) Then I heard a loud voice in heaven say: 'Now have come the salvation and the power and the kingdom of our God, and the authority of his Messiah. For the accuser of our brothers and sisters, who accuses them before our God day and night, has been hurled down.

Zechariah 3:1-2, 8-9 And he shewed me Joshua the high priest standing before the angel of the Lord, and Satan standing at his right hand to resist him. ²And the Lord said unto Satan, The Lord rebuke thee, O Satan; even the Lord that hath chosen Jerusalem rebuke thee: is not this a brand plucked out of the fire?

⁸Hear now, O Joshua the high priest, thou, and thy fellows that sit before thee: for they are men wondered at: for, behold, I will bring forth my servant the Branch. ⁹For behold the stone that I have laid before Joshua; For behold the stone that I have laid before Joshua; upon one stone shall be seven eyes: behold, I will engrave the graving thereof, saith the Lord of hosts, and I will remove the iniquity of that land in one day.

Prayer: (Borrowed)

Abba Father, as I come to stand before Your Courts, I thank You that You are the Judge and that I have a book in heaven. Thank You so much that You thought of me before time began and wrote my destiny and purpose in a book in heaven. As I stand before You, I declare in Your Courts, "I want all that is in my book. I want to fulfil my destiny that is connected to Your purposes on the earth."

Father, that which you saw concerning me before time began, I ask that this might be "my life." I choose that which you have chosen for me. As I stand before Your Courts, Father, and I lay down my life. As best I can, through the power of Your Spirit according to Romans 12:1, I present myself as a living sacrifice, holy and acceptable to you. I also ask that, according to Ephesians 4:1, I might have a walk worthy of the calling that was determined for me, written in the book in heaven.

I also ask, Father, that any case or accusation the devil would have against me before Your Courts would be silenced by the blood of Christ. Father, I thank You that His blood speaks for me, and I agree with its testimony according to Hebrews 12:24. Father, I thank You that His blood grants the legal right to forgive me, remember me, and redeem me to the purpose that is in my book. Just as Peter's destiny and purpose was secured from the Courts of Heaven, so, Father, I thank You that my destiny is secured as well.

Father, I declare before Your Courts that I am Your servant, so please use me. I ask that my life might count for the kingdom of Heaven as it is recorded in the books of destiny in Heaven. Father, I also ask that, according to Ephesians 2:10, I might walk and live as Your workmanship. I realise, Father, that Your grace makes me Your work of art and a display of Your splendour and glory. I ask before Your Courts that I would live in the rhythms of Your grace.

I ask, that You would take me "out of the grind of life, and put me into Your groove". Would You now bring about my empowerment through Your Spirit that, from Your strength, I could fulfil all that is written in the books of destiny for me? Father, I desire with great passion to fulfil Your will. Please accept my request before You and let all that would resist my petition be revoked.

Thank You so much for loving me. I look forward with expectation to fulfilling all that is in my book in Heaven.

In the Name above all names, Yahshua the Messiah

Amein!

Notes		

Key 34 - A Riddle

"A Riddle About His Name"

Meaning of concepts

A "riddle" in Hebrew means **puzzle**. It means there is a bit of a puzzle needed for understanding it. It was a puzzle in that it was like a parable in that it told a story illustrating spiritual and material truth. It is a riddle in that its meaning needs to be explained; there is a deeper meaning which underlies the figurative form, for something in its presentation is obscure. Riddles exercise the wit, and parables help the memory, and excite both attention and affection.

Look out

In Biblical times your name carried your authority, destiny, and character. It was like your trademark. There is surely no other time that your full names and identity number are so important than when you have to provide evidence to inherit, like we had to endure with my mother's will and testament. But before we come to our own name and identity, we should consider the name of the Testator.

In the Bible, we find a riddle about the Name of the Testator, Father and Son. Proverbs 30:4 (paraphrased from KJV) What is His name, and what is the name of His Son, if you can tell?

Remember

Abba Father told Moses that His name is HaYah, meaning "I AM", which is "I God", as Yah is translated in English to "God".

Are you ready?

To discover the name of the Father, and His Son, who has written a Testament wherein we are the heirs?

Key Lesson

The only Name where Yah is in THAT name, and that has the authority, character and destiny of Father and His Son, is *Yah Who Saves* – and meets the test of the riddle – is YAHSHUA.

Key 34 shows you that God's Name is encoded in the double helix of your DNA, which gives you protection in His Name.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for riddles and the name of Father and His Son.

Judges 14:12 And Samson said unto them, I will now put forth a riddle unto you: if ye can certainly declare it me within the seven days of the feast, and find it out, then I will give you thirty sheets and thirty change of garments.

Ezekiel 17:2 (NIVUK) 'Son of man, set forth an allegory and tell it to the Israelites as a parable.

Matthew 13:35 (NIVUK) So was fulfilled what was spoken through the prophet: 'I will open my mouth in parables, I will utter things hidden since the creation of the world.'

Exodus 6:3 (NASB1995) and I appeared to Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob, as God Almighty, but by My name, Lord (YHVH), I did not make Myself known to them.

Exodus 3:13-14 ... What is his name? what shall I say unto them? ¹⁴ And God said unto Moses, I Am (HaYah) That I Am (HaYah): and he said, Thus shalt thou say unto the children of Israel, I Am (HaYah) hath sent me unto you.

Psalm 68:4-5 Sing unto God, sing praises to his name: extol him that rideth upon the heavens by his name Jah (Yah), and rejoice before him. A father of the fatherless, and a judge of the widows, is God in his holy habitation.

Exodus 23:20 Behold, I send an Angel before thee, to keep thee in the way, and to bring thee into the place which I have Beware of him, and obey his voice, provoke him not; for he will not pardon your transgressions: for My name is in Him.

Notes		

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

Key 35 - Mimic

"There is one who mimics as he cannot be the Creator"

Meaning of concepts

Mimic means to make something so that it resembles an existing thing. To imply a close copying. Express image in Greek is the word khar-ak-tar' from Strong's number G5481, derived from the same word as G5482, meaning engraving, the figure stamped, i.e., an exact copy. Just as in the Greek, the Hebrew word for "image", tselem has the meaning of something that is carved or cut out.

Look out

We have already seen that Adam and Eve have been created in the image of Father God. We have seen that we are like a mirror reflecting His glory. We have seen that we are in Christ, an exact copy, like a twin. Now we will see that there is someone trying to mimic God.

Remember

As background, we must know that there is nothing new under the sun. Our Abba Father is the Creator God, who spoke everything into existence with the breath of His mouth. Yes, we can discover things and invent things, but everything that is being "created" is already in heaven, and scientists and inventors only later discovered those truths of Abba Father and His creation.

Are you ready?

That the Morning Star (Christ) can arise in you for you to be able to shine like a star in these dark times. To discover the star that is mimicking (Lucifer)?

Key Lesson

Be sure to differentiate between the Morning Star and the mimicking star of the morning, to know the Lion of Judah from the one walking around "like a lion". Allow the true Morning Star to arise in you and shine bright as stars bringing many to righteousness.

Key 35 enables you to see that only God can create, and that Satan is mimicking everything of God.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for different stars and mimicking, like an angel of light.

Amos 5:26 But ye have borne the tabernacle of your Moloch and Chiun your images, the star of your god, which ye made to yourselves.

1 Corinthians 15:41 There is one glory of the sun, and another glory of the moon, and another glory of the stars: for one star differeth from another star in glory.

Daniel 12:3 And they that be wise shall shine as the brightness of the firmament; and they that turn many to righteousness as the stars for ever and ever.

2 Peter 1:19 We have also a more sure word of prophecy; whereunto ye do well that ye take heed, as unto a light that shineth in a dark place, until the day dawn, and the day (morning) star arise in your hearts.

Isaiah 14:12 (NIVUK) How you have fallen from heaven, morning star, son of the dawn! You have been cast down to the earth, you who once laid low the nations!

(KJV) How art thou fallen from heaven, O Lucifer, son of the morning! how art thou cut down to the ground, which didst weaken the nations!

Revelation 8:10-11 And the third angel sounded, and there fell a great star from heaven, burning as it were a lamp, and it fell upon the third part of the rivers, and upon the fountains of waters; And the name of the star is called Wormwood: and the third part of the waters became wormwood; and many men died of the waters, because they were made bitter.

NT.4..

Notes		

Key 36 - Seven Eyes

For behold the stone that I have laid before Joshua; upon one stone shall be **seven eyes**: behold, I will engrave the graving thereof, saith the Lord of hosts, and I will remove the iniquity of that land in one day.

Zechariah 3:9

Meaning of concepts

To fully appreciate what our inheritance is, the eyes of our understanding should be enlightened by the Spirit of Abba. While we are busy with the action of the removal of sins, which were as red as scarlet to be as white as snow, the Scripture in Zechariah 3:9 has reference to the removal of a country's sin in a single day, and it also talks about seven eyes. What is the meaning of the seven eyes? Let's allow Scripture to interpret Scripture itself. Revelation 5:6 describes that the seven eyes are the seven Spirits of God. Remember that *seven* means **complete**, and this means the completeness of Father's Spirit. In Hebrew the word for *Spirit* is **Ruach** which means **breath** or **wind** and Isaiah 11 describes the seven Spirits.

Look out

Gaze upon Christ. Make no place for the seven demons, but replace them with the Spirit. Heavenly creatures with many eyes. Suddenly, in a twinkle of an eye. Opening of spiritual eyes

Remember

Seven stars // Seven lamps // Seven trumpets // seven demons // Seven churches // Seven men. Stephen was amongst seven men full of the Holy Spirit. When Stephen was stoned to death, there was a man amongst the stoners called Saul. As Stephen called out while dying, he asked Father to not lay a charge against the stoners, but to forgive them. Most probably it was this very act of forgiveness that caused the scales to fell of Saul's eyes days later when God confronted him and he was converted and became Paul. Seven sneezes awakened a boy from death.

Are you ready?

To forgive, as God can then forgive you; even your country can receive forgiveness of sins in day.

Key Lesson

Satan cannot fill us with his "seven demons" when we have received the sevenfold Spirit of the Father.

Key 37 enables you to forgive, which then can cause the scales to be removed from the eyes of people who are blinded and who can then start to see with the seven eyes of the Father's Spirit.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for seven, eyes, and Spirit.

Zechariah 3:9 (NIVUK) "...See, the stone I have set in front of Joshua! There are seven eyes on that one stone, and I will engrave an inscription

on it," says the LORD Almighty, "and I will remove the sin of this land in a single day..."

Ephesians 1:18 The eyes of your understanding being enlightened; that ye may know what is the hope of his calling, and what the riches of the glory of his inheritance in the saints.

Revelation 5:6 And I beheld, and, lo, in the midst of the throne and of the four beasts, and in the midst of the elders, stood a Lamb as it had been slain, having seven horns and seven eyes, which are the seven Spirits of God sent forth into all the earth.

Isaiah 11:1-3 (NIVUK) A shoot will come up from the stump of Jesse; from his roots a Branch will bear fruit. ² The **Spirit of the Lord** (#1) will rest on him – the **Spirit of wisdom** (#2) and of **understanding** (#3), the **Spirit of counsel** (#4) and of **might** (#5), the **Spirit of the knowledge** (#6) and **fear of the Lord** (#7) – ³ and he will delight in the fear of the Lord. He will not judge by what he sees with his eyes, or decide by what he hears with his ears;

Revelation 1:4 (NASB1995) John to the seven churches that are in Asia: Grace to you and peace, from Him who is and who was and who is to come, and from the seven Spirits who are before His throne.

Revelation 3:1 (NASB1995) "To the angel of the church in Sardis write: He who has the seven Spirits of God and the seven stars, says this: 'I know your deeds, that you have a name that you are alive, but you are dead.

Revelation 4:5 (NASB1995) Out from the throne come flashes of lightning and sounds and peals of thunder. And there were seven lamps of fire burning before the throne, which are the seven Spirits of God.

Revelation 8:2 (NASB1995) And I saw the seven angels who stand before God, and seven trumpets were given to them.

Revelation 8:6 (NASB1995) And the seven angels who had the seven trumpets prepared themselves to sound them.

Mark 16:9 (NASB1995) Now after He had risen early on the first day of the week, He first appeared to Mary Magdalene, from whom He had cast out seven demons.

Matthew 12:45 (NASB1995) Then it goes and takes along with it seven other spirits more wicked than itself, and they go in and live there; and the last state of that man becomes worse than the first.

Revelation 1:20 (NASB1995) As for the mystery of the seven stars which you saw in My right hand, and the seven golden lampstands: the seven stars are the angels of the seven churches, and the seven lampstands are the seven churches.

Acts 6:3 Wherefore, brethren, look ye out among you seven men of honest report, full of the Holy Ghost and wisdom, whom we may appoint over this business.

Acts 7:58 (NIVUK) dragged him out of the city and began to stone him. Meanwhile, the witnesses laid their coats at the feet of a young man named Saul.

Acts 7:60 And he kneeled down, and cried with a loud voice, Lord, lay not this sin to their charge.

Acts 9:18 And immediately there fell from his (Saul's) eyes as it had been scales: and he received sight forthwith, and arose, and was baptized.

Revelation 4:8 (NASB1995) And the four living creatures, each one of them having six wings, are full of eyes around and within; and day and night they do not cease to say, "Holy, holy, holy is the Lord God, the Almighty, who was and who is and who is to come.

1 Corinthians 15:52 In a moment, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trumpet; for the trumpet will sound, and the dead will be raised imperishable, and we will be changed.

2 Kings 6:17 (NASB1995) Then Elisha prayed and said, "O Lord, I pray, open his eyes that he may see." And the Lord opened the servant's eyes and he saw; and behold, the mountain was full of horses and chariots of fire all around Elisha.

Proverbs 4:25 (NASB1995) Let your eyes look directly ahead and let your gaze be fixed straight in front of you.

2 Kings 4:35 Then he returned, and walked in the house to and fro; and went up, and stretched himself upon him: and the child sneezed seven times, and the child opened his eyes.

Isaiah **25:7** (describes how Father will destroy the covering from the face of all peoples, including nations.) (*NASB1995*) *And on this mountain He will swallow up the covering which is over all peoples, Even the veil which is stretched over all nations.*

Notes

Key 37 - Mandate

To rule and reign as king-priests.

Meaning of concepts

Mandate means the *authority* given to an elected group of people, such as a government, to perform an action or govern a country. Also, a command or *authorization to act in a particular way* on a public issue given by the electorate to its representative. A judicial command, order, or precept, written or oral, from a court; a direction that a court has the authority to give, and an individual is bound to obey. What is our mandate as sons?

Our mandate is given in Psalm 2 and 110, as well as the whole book of Hebrews, especially chapters 5, 6 and 7.

Meaning of **Melchizedek**: Derives from the Hebrew words *melek*, meaning **king**, and *Sadeq*, meaning to be **just** or **righteous**.

Look out

Melchizedek was, and we are:

- ы King of Salem
- ► Priest of the Most High God

A king rules and reigns and puts out decrees

Remember

A priest is someone who approaches God on behalf of others, and therefore is an intercessor and minister unto God. Whenever you pray for others, you are fulfilling a priestly function.

Father has a twofold desire in His creation of man – He wants man to possess His image and express Him in full, and He desires that man would represent God with His authority to deal with His enemy and bring in His kingdom. This is the purpose for which we live on earth.

Keys of the Kingdom of Heaven bind things on earth and loosen things from heaven unto earth.

Are you ready?

To rule on earth and to cast out demons by the Finger of God, which is a sign that His Kingdom has come. God had a specific purpose in His creation of man. He created man in His own image and with His likeness so that man may express God and represent God.

Key Lesson

Abba taught me to always look for the three in everything to fully understand the heavenly blueprints. In priesthoods it is: The Levitical order, the Zadokite order, the Melchizedekian order.

Zadok was the high priest during David's reign. When all of Israel went astray and followed after Absalom, including the Levitical order, Zadok picked up the ark and followed David, even though

it seemed that this would lead to certain doom. Zadok did not do what was politically expedient, but he did what was right. He is a shadow of the Melchizedekian order, which is the blueprint.

The order of Melchizedek was and is:

- → Priest of the Most High God
- → Without father, without mother, without descent
- ы Having neither beginning, nor end of life
- → Made like unto the Son of God
- → A priest continually
- ► After the power of an endless life
- → A priest for ever

Key 37 enables you to receive your mandate to rule and reign, declare and decree as kingly priests, according to His Kingdom.

Scripture

Read the Scriptures and search for Melchizedek and other different priesthoods, like Levi and Zadok.

Genesis 14:18 And Melchizedek king of Salem brought forth bread and wine: and he was the priest of the most high God.

Psalm 110:4 The Lord hath sworn, and will not repent, Thou art a priest for ever after the order of Melchizedek.

Hebrews 7:1 For this Melchizedek, king of Salem, priest of the most high God, who met Abraham returning from the slaughter of the kings, and blessed him; ²To whom also Abraham gave a tenth part of all; first being by interpretation King of righteousness, and after that also King of Salem, which is, King of peace; ³Without father, without mother, without

descent, having neither beginning of days, nor end of life; but made *like unto the Son of God; abideth a priest continually.

Exodus 19:6 And ye shall be unto me a kingdom of priests, and an holy nation. These are the words which thou shalt speak unto the children of Israel.

Exodus 32:26 (NASB1995) then Moses stood in the gate of the camp, and said, "Whoever is for the LORD, come to me!" And all the sons of Levi gathered together to him.

1 Peter 2:9 But ye are a chosen generation, a royal priesthood, an holy nation, a peculiar people; that ye should shew forth the praises of him who hath called you out of darkness into his marvellous light;

Revelation 1:6 And (Christ) hath made us kings and priests unto God and his Father; to him be glory and dominion for ever and ever.

Ezekiel 44:16 They shall enter into my sanctuary, and they shall come near to my table, to minister unto me, and they shall keep my charge.

Psalm 2:7 (NIVUK) I will proclaim the LORD's decree: He said to me, 'You are my son; today I have become your father.

Matthew 16:19 (NASB1995) I will give you the keys of the kingdom of heaven; and whatever you bind on earth shall have been bound in heaven, and whatever you loose on earth shall have been loosed in heaven."

Revelation 5:10 And hast made us unto our God kings and priests: and we shall reign on the earth.

Luke 11:20 But if I cast out demons by the finger of God, then the kingdom of God has come upon you.

Exodus 8:19 Then the magicians said to Pharaoh, "This is the finger of God." But Pharaoh's heart was hardened, and he did not listen to them, as the Lord had said.

Revelation 1:6 and has made us to be a kingdom and priests to serve his God and Father – to him be glory and power for ever and ever! Amen.

Notes

Key 38 - Crossover

Two rivers (Two births)

Meaning of concepts

Two crossovers of the Hebrew people through two bodies of water, one through the Red Sea, the other through the Jordan River, typifies our walking away from sin and slavery out of Egypt into Jordan, our place of inheritance and possession. Scripture tells us Peter was naked when he put on his fisher's coat. Naked in Scripture did not mean naked as a baby is born. Naked in scripture means not having your outer garment on or your legs or part of your body is exposed.

Look out

We have to be clothed with an inner and outer garment.

Remember

Moses split the Red Sea, and the priests split the Jordan. At the Red Sea the Egyptians drowned when the water had drawn back. At the Jordan the waters drew back to a place called Adam. We are moving back to precisely who we were in Adam and Eve in Eden before they lost the glory and became naked. We have to go through the Red Sea (the work of Christ on the cross) to get rid of the sin-and-slavery mentality, putting on our inner garment. However, we also have to go through the Jordan to inherit and

possess the Kingdom of Heaven, putting on our outer garment. It reminds us of the two gospels, one preached by John, repentance of sin and salvation, and the other by Christ himself, the Kingdom of Heaven, inheritance, and possession.

Are you ready?

We are waiting to be clothed with an outer garment, the glory of Abba Father again, as Adam and Eve before they lost the glory.

Key Lesson

We have to cross two rivers to be clothed in His righteousness and not to be found naked.

Key 38 enables you to cross over the second river, the Jordan, so that you can inherit all the promises of the promised land, which include the outer garment, which is like a second birth into His glory.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for crossovers and not to be naked.

Exodus 14:21 (NIVUK) Then Moses stretched out his hand over the sea, and all that night the LORD drove the sea back with a strong east wind and turned it into dry land. The waters were divided.

Hebrews 11:29 By faith they passed through the Red Sea as by dry land, whereas the Egyptians, attempting to do so, were drowned.

Joshua 3:16 (NIVUK) the water from upstream stopped flowing. It piled up in a heap a great distance away, at a town called Adam in the

vicinity of Zarethan, while the water flowing down to the Sea of the Arabah (that is, the Dead Sea) was completely cut off. So, the people crossed over opposite Jericho.

John 21:7 Therefore that disciple whom Jesus loved saith unto Peter, It is the Lord. Now when Simon Peter heard that it was the Lord, he girt his fisher's coat unto him, (for he was naked,) and did cast himself into the sea.

In John 21:7 we read how Peter caught fish when he realised it was the resurrected Christ on the shore.

Job 1:21a (NASB1995) He said, "Naked I came from my mother's womb, and naked I shall return there.

Nahum 3:5 (NASB1995) "Behold, I am against you," declares the Lord of hosts; "And I will lift up your skirts over your face, And show to the nations your nakedness And to the kingdoms your disgrace.

Joshua 3:17 And the priests that bare the ark of the covenant of the Lord stood firm on dry ground in the midst of Jordan, and (the whole nation) all the Israelites passed over on dry ground, until all the people were passed clean over Jordan.

Notes		

THE FORTY KEYS OF DAVID – LAURIKA DU PLESSIS

-		

Key 39 - Testing

Before we "read" the testament, you are requested to take time to ponder prayerfully about the following at the feet of Our Father:

Meaning of concepts

To be **tested** is to go through the fire to get rid of the dross.

Look out

For the testing and going through fire, but remember you have received 100% through Christ. He passed the test on your behalf. The fire is to get rid of our flesh and to live in the Spirit.

Remember

The Word will accomplish what it is sent out to do. Remember no-one judges you except the Word.

Are you ready?

To come before the Father with a circumcised heart to examine yourself, but without striving?

Checklist

- 1. Did you move from the old order to the new order?
- 2. Did you choose the Kingdom of Heaven over the kingdom of Babylon?

- 3. To which voice are you listening?
- 4. Did you stop to measure with the law and now stand on Abba's righteousness?
- 5. Did you put on Christ and cross over?
- 6. Did you die to self and give yourself as living sacrifice?
- 7. Did you forgive everyone?
- 8. Do you have your heavenly bloodline and DNA?
- 9. Did you renew your mind and turn to Father and put your left hand in His right hand?
- 10. Do you have a new value system and blueprint?
- 11. Are you walking with Abba as Enoch, Elijah and Adam and Eve did?
- 12. Do you take up your firstborn right as son?
- 13. Which frequency are you sounding?
- 14. Did the Morning Star arise in you?
- 15. Are you taking up your authority as king and priest?
- 16. Did you exchange your identity card for your heavenly card and passport?
- 17. Do you now exchange the ring, the staff, and the cord to receive the goat, your heavenly inheritance?

Key Lesson

Make sure about your election and calling as sons, and train yourself in Abba's righteousness.

Key 39 enables you to be sure about your election and calling as a son, that you may receive God's righteousness and therefor may inherit everything.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures and search for all the verses about being awake and about righteousness and also about darkness and light.

- **2 Timothy 2:15 (ESVUK)** Do your best to present yourself to God as one approved, a worker who has no need to be ashamed, rightly handling the word of truth.
- **2 Peter 1:10 (ESVUK)** Therefore, brothers, be all the more diligent to make your calling and election sure, for if you practice these qualities, you will never fail.
- **2 Timothy 3:16-17 (ESVUK)** All Scripture is breathed out by God and profitable for teaching, for reproof, for correction, and for training in righteousness, that the man of God may be competent, equipped for every good work.
- **Isaiah 55:11 (NIVUK)** so is my word that goes out from my mouth: It will not return to me empty, but will accomplish what I desire and achieve the purpose for which I sent it.
- **2 Corinthians 13:5 (NIVUK)** Examine yourselves to see whether you are in the faith; test yourselves. Do you not realise that Christ Jesus is in you unless, of course, you fail the test?

John 12:48 He that rejecteth me, and receiveth not my words, hath one that judgeth him: the word that I have spoken, the same shall judge him in the last day.

Notes

Key 40 - Inherit

"From His full estate."

Meaning of concepts

A **son**, according to the Bible, is born from above and has a new ID, with a new name and surname and language, as well as new DNA.

What is an inheritance? The right of an heir to have succession of property upon the death of a testator, something that may be legally transferred to an heir.

Remember

In Christ you are heir of, and have, according to Hebrews 1, the following:

- 1. All things in Christ everything is available to me! I share in all his riches and mighty blessings (Ephesians 1: 3); I can do the same things as Christ; born from above; partakers of Christ.
- 2. Sons have creative power in Christ can do the same things as Christ and even bigger things! Job 22:26-28 decree a thing and it will be established.
- 3. Crowned with His glory, just like the Son is the King of glory and leads many sons to glory (Hebrews 2:10)

- 4. Exact copy of Christ, the Son; receive new DNA we are part of Him (Hebrews 1:3).
- 5. Creative power of our words use it! Matthew 16:19 I will give you the keys of heaven…bind/loose…
- 6. Have righteousness in Christ (1 Corinthians 1:30; Romans 3:22).
- 7. Sitting in at the council (with so much power) (Psalm 82:1 and Psalm 89:5)
- 8. Power above angels (Hebrew 2:7)
- 9. The name of Yahshua and I receive Abba as my Father (Galatians 4: 5, 6); declare his Name
- 10. The throne (Ephesians 2:19-22, Revelation 3:21)
- 11. The sceptre (authority) Luke 10:19 "I have given you authority over all the power of the enemy..." you have authority to rebuke the enemy (Zechariah 3:2).
- 12. The anointing of the seven Spirits of our Father we carry it!
- 13. Immortality we are born from incorruptible seed, living for eternity. We have conquered death! (2 Timothy 1:10)
- 14. Everything under our feet (Hebrews 2:8; Psalm 8:4-6)

Look out

To receive an inheritance and to rule and reign with Christ.

Are you ready?

To inherit all that Christ has promised to you in His Testament?

Key Lesson

Show your identity to the court of Heaven to prove your sonship and receive your inheritance.

Key 40 enables you to inherit the fullness of Christ's estate.

Scriptures

Read the Scriptures (Hebrews 1, especially) and search for inheritance, testament and ruling and reigning with Christ on earth.

Psalm 2:8 Ask of me, and I shall give thee nations for thine inheritance, and the uttermost parts of the earth for thy possession.

Ephesians 1:3 Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, who hath blessed us with all spiritual blessings in heavenly places in Christ:

Job 22:28 Thou shalt also decree a thing, and it shall be established unto thee: and the light shall shine upon thy ways.

Hebrews 2:8 Thou hast put all things in subjection under his feet. For in that he put all in subjection under him, he left nothing that is not put under him. But now we see not yet all things put under him.

Matthew 16:19 And I will give unto thee the keys of the kingdom of heaven: and whatsoever thou shalt bind on earth shall be bound in heaven: and whatsoever thou shalt loose on earth shall be loosed in heaven.

1 Corinthians 1:30 (NIVUK) It is because of him that you are in Christ Jesus, who has become for us wisdom from God – that is, our righteousness, holiness and redemption.

Luke 10:19 Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.

2 Timothy 1:10 But is now made manifest by the appearing of our Saviour Jesus Christ, who hath abolished death, and hath brought life and immortality to light through the gospel.

Notes